
AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Tuesday, January 2, 2024 
5:45 PM 
 

 

I. Appointments – Mayor Bob Nation 
 

 
II. Council Committee Reports 

 
A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 

Ward IV 

 
1. Waterfront at Wildhorse Village ASDSP – An Amended Site 

Development Section Plan for the addition of on-street parking for 

an 11.55-acre tract of land zoned “PC & R” Planned Commercial & 
Residential located south of Wild Horse Creek Road, west of 

Chesterfield Pkwy East, and north of Burkhardt Place. (Voice Vote) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 
 

2. Next Meeting – Thursday, January 4, 2024 (5:30pm) 
 

 

B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 
Ward III 

 
1. Repeal Planning Policy No. 1 dated 06/19/2017 – Chesterfield 

Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee – On December 

19. 2023 the Finance and Administration Committee met and voted 
4-0 to recommend to City Council that the Chesterfield Historic and 

Landmark Preservation Committee (“CHLPC”) be disbanded and its 
regulatory duties be transferred to other City Committees and 
Commissions. (Voice Vote) Finance and Administration 

Committee recommends approval. 
 

2. Authorize a 2024 Budget Amendment in the amount of $5,000 

to update the City’s Website Logo – On December 19, 2023 the 
Finance and Administration Committee met and voted 4-0 to 

recommend that City Council authorize a 2024 Budget Amendment 
in the amount of $5,000 to update the City’s Website Logo. (Roll Call 
Vote) Finance and Administration Committee recommends 

approval. 
 

3. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 
 



C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 
Ward I 

 
1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 
D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann 

Mastorakos, Ward II 

 
1. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 
 

III. Report from the City Administrator & Other Items Requiring Action by 
City Council – Mike Geisel 

 
A. Proposed Resolution No. 494 – St. Louis Boundary Commission-Map 

Plan – A resolution by the City of Chesterfield authorizing the City 

Administrator to file with the Boundary Commission of St. Louis County a 
map plan identifying the limits of any potential boundary changes that may 

occur during the upcoming five-year planning cycle established by the 
boundary commission. (Voice Vote) Planning Director recommends 
approval. 

 
B. Liquor License – GO PLAY LLC (140 Long Road, Suite 108) – has requested 

a new liquor license for retail sale of malt liquor and light wine by the 

drink, to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. (Voice Vote) 
Application has been reviewed by the Police Department and the 

Planning Department.  There are no known outstanding municipal 
violations. 
 

IV. Other Legislation 
 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3483 – 1491, 1503, 1505 Schoettler Road BAP – An 

ordinance providing for the approval of a boundary adjustment plat for the 
consolidation of three parcels located in Schoettler’s Subdivision Parcel “B” 

totaling 13.87 acres zoned “NU” Non-Urban (19R130371, 19R130360, 
19R130393. (First and Second Reading) Planning Director recommends 
approval. 

 
B. Proposed Bill No. 3484 - Vacation of Easement – An ordinance vacating 

an easement on adjusted Lot DD of boundary adjustment plat of adjusted 
lots A, B, D, and E of Wild Horse Heights Subdivision plat book 348, page 
415 and a tract of land in U.S. surveys 153 and 164, township 45 north, 

range 3 east, as recorded in plat book 352 page 82-83 of St. Louis County, 
Missouri. (First and Second Reading) Planning Director recommends 
approval. 

 
 

V. Unfinished Business 
 
 



VI. New Business 
 

 
VII. Adjournment 

 
 

NOTE:  City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 

purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following:  legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994.  
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND AT (636) 
537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Tuesday, January 2, 2024 
7:00 PM 

 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation   

 
 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
 

IV. ROLL CALL – City Clerk Vickie McGownd 

 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation  

 
A. Executive Session Minutes – December 4, 2023 

 
B. Public Hearing Minutes (FY2024 Budget) – December 4, 2023 

 
C. Public Hearing Minutes (Wildhorse Village SBD) – December 4, 2023 

 

D. City Council Meeting Minutes – December 4, 2023 
 
 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

  
A. Thursday, January 4, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 

 
B. Monday, January 15, 2024 – City Hall Closed (Martin Luther King Jr. 

Day) 

 
C. Tuesday, January 16, 2024 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 

 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 



 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Merrell Hansen, 

Ward IV 

 
1. Waterfront at Wildhorse Village ASDSP – An Amended Site 

Development Section Plan for the addition of on-street parking for an 
11.55-acre tract of land zoned “PC & R” Planned Commercial & 
Residential located south of Wild Horse Creek Road, west of 

Chesterfield Pkwy East, and north of Burkhardt Place. (Voice Vote) 
Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 

 

2. Next Meeting – Thursday, January 4, 2024 (5:30pm) 
 

B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Michael Moore, 
Ward III 

 

1. Repeal Planning Policy No. 1 dated 06/19/2017 – Chesterfield 
Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee – On December 19. 

2023 the Finance and Administration Committee met and voted 4-0 to 
recommend to City Council that the Chesterfield Historic and Landmark 
Preservation Committee (“CHLPC”) be disbanded and its regulatory 

duties be transferred to other City Committees and Commissions. 
(Voice Vote) Finance and Administration Committee recommends 
approval. 

 
2. Authorize a 2024 Budget Amendment in the amount of $5,000 to 

update the City’s Website Logo – On December 19, 2023 the Finance 
and Administration Committee met and voted 4-0 to recommend that 
City Council authorize a 2024 Budget Amendment in the amount of 

$5,000 to update the City’s Website Logo. (Roll Call Vote) Finance and 
Administration Committee recommends approval. 

 
3. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 

 

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Mary Monachella, 
Ward I 

 

1. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 

Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Mary Ann Mastorakos, 
Ward II 

 

2. Next Meeting – not yet scheduled 
 



 

X. REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 
 

A. Proposed Resolution No. 494 – St. Louis Boundary Commission-Map 

Plan – A resolution by the City of Chesterfield authorizing the City 
Administrator to file with the Boundary Commission of St. Louis County a 
map plan identifying the limits of any potential boundary changes that may 

occur during the upcoming five-year planning cycle established by the 
boundary commission. (Voice Vote) Planning Director recommends 

approval. 
 

B. Liquor License – GO PLAY LLC (140 Long Road, Suite 108) – has requested 

a new liquor license for retail sale of malt liquor and light wine by the 
drink, to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. (Voice Vote) 

Application has been reviewed by the Police Department and the 
Planning Department.  There are no known outstanding municipal 
violations. 

 
 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3483 – 1491, 1503, 1505 Schoettler Road BAP – An 
ordinance providing for the approval of a boundary adjustment plat for the 

consolidation of three parcels located in Schoettler’s Subdivision Parcel “B” 
totaling 13.87 acres zoned “NU” Non-Urban (19R130371, 19R130360, 
19R130393. (First and Second Reading) Planning Director recommends 

approval. 
 
B. Proposed Bill No. 3484 - Vacation of Easement – An ordinance vacating 

an easement on adjusted Lot DD of boundary adjustment plat of adjusted 
lots A, B, D, and E of Wild Horse Heights Subdivision plat book 348, page 

415 and a tract of land in U.S. surveys 153 and 164, township 45 north, 
range 3 east, as recorded in plat book 352 page 82-83 of St. Louis County, 
Missouri. (First and Second Reading) Planning Director recommends 

approval. 
 

 

XII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 

NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994. 
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND 

AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



AGENDA REVIEW – TUESDAY, JANUARY 2, 2024 – 5:45 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 5:45 PM, on Tuesday, 
January 2, 2024.   

 
The agenda review will be immediately followed by an executive session. 
 

Please let me know, ASAP, if you will be unable to attend these meetings. 
 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS  
 
Thursday, January 4, 2024 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 

 

Monday, January 15, 2024 – City Hall Closed (Martin Luther King Jr. Day) 
 

Tuesday, January 16, 2024 – City Council (7:00pm) 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 
 
 
APPOINTMENTS 
 

There are no appointments scheduled for Tuesday’s meeting. 
 



DATE CHECK # VENDOR DESCRIPTION CHECK AMT FUND

11/22/2023 1334 COMMONS OF BROADMOOR REIMBURSEMENT 8,640.00$ 137
11/30/2023 1336 FAIRWAY CAPITAL, LLC PICKLEBALL FENCING 19,268.00 137
11/30/2023 1338 KNAPHEIDE TRUCK EQUIPMENT CENTER OUTFIT ONE TON DUMP TRUCK 30,141.00 137
11/30/2023 1339 TECH ELECTRONICS, INC COUNCIL CHAMBERS A/V SYSTEM 16,354.24 137
11/2/2023 51356 BOMBSHELL CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LOGAN PARK CONSTRUCTION 88,975.95 119
11/17/2023 51417 COLLECTOR OF REVENUE MONARCH LEVEE TAX 38,700.57 119
11/22/2023 51440 CERTIFIED BACKFLOW PREVENTION LLC BACKFLOW PREVENTERS 6,675.75 119
11/22/2023 51444 METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT 16365 LYDIA HILL DR, ACCT #0472321-9 8,164.89 119
11/30/2023 51457 BIG RIVER RACE MANAGEMENT RACE MANAGEMENT 8,755.33 119
11/30/2023 51472 KNAPHEIDE TRUCK EQUIPMENT CENTER OUTFIT ONE TON DUMP TRUCK 23,475.00 119
11/30/2023 51473 LOGIC SYSTEMS PRODUCTION, LLC AMPHITHEATER DOWNSTAGE LIGHTING 9,999.84 119
11/30/2023 51483 MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY 16365 LYDIA HILL DR, ACCT #1017-210013295038 44,059.64 119
11/30/2023 51486 SPORTSPRINT TURKEY TROT SHIRTS 18,618.75 119
11/1/2023 70693 DELTA DENTAL  OF MISSOURI NOV 2023 DENTAL INSURANCE PREMIUMS 13,963.27 001
11/1/2023 70696 ST. LOUIS AREA HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST-

MEDICAL
NOVEMBER 2023 HEALTH INSURANCE PREMIUMS 220,184.40 001

11/2/2023 70708 FISCHER HOMES ST LOUIS LLC LOT CASH ESCROW RELEASE-ALEXANDER WOODS-LOTS
11,17,22,30

6,000.00 808

11/2/2023 70713 LOU FUSZ FORD, INC. 2023 FORD F150 W/PURSUIT PKG 46,962.00 121
11/2/2023 70727 SUNSET LAW ENFORCEMENT LLC AMMUNITION 16,855.00 121
11/2/2023 70731 THE BACKSTOPPERS INC. 2023 DISTRIBUTION TO BACKSTOPPERS

(BACKSTOPPALOOZA DONATIONS)
68,460.00 001

11/2/2023 70733 TOPE INC 14118 PARLIAMENT DRIVE/ SEWER REPAIR 5,709.30 110
11/2/2023 70734 TOPE INC 15065 ISLEVIEW DRIVE/ SEWER REPAIR 7,334.64 110
11/2/2023 70738 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC ANNUAL EXECUTIME SUPPORT CONTRACT 7,381.76 001
11/9/2023 70746 AMERICAN BANKERS INSURANCE COMPANY FLOOD INSURANCE - 165 PUBLIC WORKS DR 6,628.00 001
11/9/2023 70758 ED ROEHR SAFETY PRODUCTS SAFETY EQUIPMENT FOR POLICE VEHICLES (LIGHTS,

SPEAKERS, SIRENS)
24,033.97 121

11/9/2023 70770 LANDMARK DODGE INC NINE (9) 2023 DODGE DURANGO-POLICE VEHICLES 356,794.00 121
11/9/2023 70783 MURPHY COMPANY PMF REPLACEMENTS-WATER HYDRANT; COMPRESSOR ON

CHILLER
8,595.64 001

11/9/2023 70784 NEUMAYER EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC REPLACEMENT OF FOUR MANWAYS 5,212.56 001
11/17/2023 70806 AMEREN MISSOURI 690 CHESTERFIELD PKWY W-0627147004 9,858.35 001
11/17/2023 70816 FORD ASPHALT COMPANY, INC 2023 ASPHALT MILL AND OVERLAY PROJECT 143,564.67 120
11/17/2023 70817 GAMMA'S SHIELD SHADE TREE INC 2023 STREET TREE AND STUMP REMOVAL 12,378.08 001
11/17/2023 70828 MURPHY COMPANY 2023 HVAC SERVICES-CITY HALL 6,206.25 001
11/17/2023 70830 NEXT-LEVEL CONSTRUCTION, LLC 2023 WILDHORSE PARKWAY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT 772,217.27 120
11/17/2023 70840 THE HARTFORD-PRIORITY ACCOUNTS NOV 23 GROUP LIFE, LTD, STD, VOL LIFE, ACCIDENT,

CRITICAL ILLNESS INSURANCE
14,410.77 001

11/17/2023 70842 TOPE INC 14256 REELFOOT LAKE/ SEWER REPAIR 7,721.16 110
11/17/2023 70844 TRUCK CENTERS, INC. 2.5 TON DUMP TRUCK & TANDEM DUMP TRUCK 198,537.00 120
11/22/2023 70850 BOBCAT COMPANY SKID STEER AND PLANER ATTACHMENT 17,306.72 001
11/22/2023 70852 CERTIFIED BACKFLOW PREVENTION LLC REPLACEMENT OF 4 STOLEN BACKFLOW PREVENTERS 5,000.00 001
11/22/2023 70858 FLOCK GROUP INC FLOCK CAMERAS ANNUAL CONTRACT 10,000.00 121
11/22/2023 70860 GEOTECHNOLOGY INC. 2023 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION TESTING SERVICES 12,459.91 120
11/22/2023 70871 OATES ASSOCIATES WILSON AVENUE-DESIGN SERVICES 9,623.65 120
11/22/2023 70872 PNC BANK OCT-NOV 2023 PNC CREDIT CARD STATEMENT 8,323.67 001
11/22/2023 70875 R. V. WAGNER, INC. 2023 BRIDGE DECK SEALING PROJECT 10,126.72 120
11/22/2023 70879 ST. LOUIS COUNTY MISSOURI - POLICE DEPT POLICE COMMUNICATIONS 18,047.50 121
11/22/2023 70880 SUN BADGE CO, UNIFORM BADGES 6,236.58 121
11/30/2023 70957 AMERICA'S PARKING REMARKING INC 2023 STREET STRIPING 60,000.00 001
11/30/2023 70962 ENERGY PETROLEUM CO. REGULAR RFG GASOLINE, DIESEL #2 ULTRA LS WINTER;

MID RFG GASOLINE 89 OCT; #2 DIESEL ULS
43,135.53 001

11/30/2023 70972 INTERSTATE TRAILERS, INC EQUIPMENT FLOAT TRAILER 17,599.00 001
11/30/2023 70983 THE GRAVILLE LAW FIRM, LLC SEPTEMBER AND OCTOBER 2023 SERVICES 86,295.11 001
11/9/2023 5061 STOCK & ASSOCIATES 2023 ARCHERY RANGE IMPROVEMENTS 8,500.00 119

2,593,491.44$

Respectfully submitted by,
Jeannette Kelly, Director of Finance General Fund 001

Sewer lateral fund 110
Police forfeiture  fund 114

Parks 119
Capital Improvements 120

Public Safety 121
Am Rescue Plan Act 137

Trust & Agency 808
TGA Trust Fund 810

City of Chesterfield
Excess Checks (=> $5,000)

November 2023

Fund Legend



 1 

 
 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 __________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                   

 

 PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

 OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD  

 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

  

DECEMBER 4, 2023 
________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 

Mayor Nation called the Public Hearing to order at 6:45 p.m.  Councilmembers 

Monachella, McGuinness, Wahl, Mastorakos, Hurt, Moore, Hansen and Budoor were in 

attendance, along with approximately 15 visitors/members of the Press. 

 

Section 3 of Ordinance No. 10 requires the City Administrator to prepare and submit a 

budget for City Council to consider/adopt, prior to January 1 of each year.  Section 4 of 

Ordinance No. 10 requires that a Public Hearing be held, prior to the adoption of the 

budget.  This budget presentation satisfies all requirements of Ordinance No. 10. 

 

Mayor Nation recognized Finance Director Jeannette Kelly who noted that the budget has 

been created around the City’s Mission Statement.  Ms. Kelly continued by summarizing 

the budget process.  The initial budget was submitted to Council and two budget 

workshops followed on October 10 and October 30. 

 

Ms. Kelly stated that the proposed FY2024 budget provides for $867,584 net revenues 

over expenditures.  The FY2024 budget includes compensation for step increases for the 

Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) officers and sergeants, per contract, as well as 4.5% 

merit pool for non-FOP, effective January 14, 2024 (presentation attached). 

 

Parks Sales Tax Fund 

 

Ms. Kelly stated that the passage of Proposition” P”, in November 2004, resulted in the 

creation of a Parks Sales Tax Fund, which funds all parks and recreation activities.  The 

Parks Fund is supported by a ½ cent sales tax and, unlike the General Fund Sales Tax and 

the Capital Improvement Sales Tax, the City receives 100% of the revenue from this tax. 

 



 2 

City Council has earmarked $8.7 million to pre-pay Parks debt service.  Each year a 

portion of these funds is used to provide uniform debt service payments of approximately 

$1.3 million annually. 

 

Total revenue (including sales tax revenue) in the Parks Sales Tax Fund is projected to 

generate approximately $10.02 million during FY2024.  Expenditures and transfers out 

are projected to total $8.25 million and $974,740, respectively.  The Parks Sales Tax 

Fund – Fund Reserves (unrestricted fund balance) are expected to end the year at $3.07 

million during FY2024. 

 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

 

The Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund is self-sufficient since it is funded from the ½ 

cent sales tax, approved in 1996, as Propositions “R” and “S.” Ms. Kelly stated that the 

City only receives 85% of the total money it gets from the ½ cent sales tax, due to a 

statutory requirement that the City “share” 15% of the total with the St. Louis County 

sales tax pool.  In conjunction with a $30 million bond issue approved by the voters in 

1996 for improvements to public rights-of-way, voters also approved a ½ cent sales tax 

for capital improvements. 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that revenues in the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund are 

budgeted at $6.72 million in FY2024, up $600,000 from the FY2023 adopted budget.  

Proposed expenditures for FY2024 are $8.43 million for capital projects and 

improvements. 

 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund – Fund Reserves are expected to end the year at 

$1.39 million during FY2024.  The City does not generally intend to carry a fund balance 

in the Capital Improvement Fund; however, timing of projects will affect this. 

 

Public Safety Fund 

 

Ms. Kelly explained that the Public Safety Fund is a new budget created in FY2018, and 

the FY2024 budget will accomplish the same goals.  The Public Safety Fund acts as a net 

zero fund balance budget where the General Fund funds a portion of the public safety 

operations.  By fund definition, revenues equal expenditures; therefore, the shortfall of 

revenues is funded by a transfer from the General Fund.  In FY2024, this is estimated at 

$9 million, $287,000 higher than the FY2023 adopted budget. 

 

General Fund 

 

Ms. Kelly reported that General Fund revenues are projected to total $23.43 million in 

FY2024.  This is an increase of $2.2 million from the FY2023 adopted budget.  General 

Fund expenditures and transfers are projected to total $12.61 million (up $1.36 million 

from the FY2023 adopted budget) and $9.37 million, respectively for FY2024. 

 

Ms. Kelly stated that the City maintains General Fund – Fund Reserves of over 40% of 

the City’s operating budget.  The General Fund – Fund Reserve balance is projected to 



 3 

total $13.5 million at the end of FY2023 and, when factoring in the amount required to be 

set-aside due to the City’s “40%” policy, leaves $3.6 million available over and above the 

40% fund reserve policy.  Based on the FY2024 proposed budget, the unrestricted 

FY2024 ending fund balance is projected to be almost $15 million, which is $6.2 million 

above the 40% policy threshold. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Ms. Patricia Tocco, 14720 Whitebrook Drive, made comments pertaining to the budget 

process and Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) best practices for public 

participation in planning and budgeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

 

       

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 



2024
PROPOSED
BUDGET
PUBLIC
HEARING
December 4, 2023



PUBLIC
HEARING
2024 Budget

• Vision and Mission Statement
• Budget Summary
• Parks Sales Tax Fund
• Capital Improvement Sales Tax

Fund
• Public Safety
• General Fund & Fund Reserves



City of Chesterfield
Vision and Mission Statement

Vision:
Chesterfield is a premier community known for safe and
beautiful neighborhoods, high quality development, and
great schools, services and amenities.

Mission:
The City of Chesterfield provides superior municipal services to
its residents and businesses through innovation, professional
management, and leadership.



2024 Budget
Summary

• Two public budget workshops were held:
10/10 and 10/30

• Revenue totals (not including transfers)
$44,469,801

• Expense totals (not including transfers)
$43,602,217

• The proposed 2024 budget provides for
$867,584 net revenues over
expenditures for the four major funds.

• Parks Fund $   797,435 R>E
• Capital Fund ($1,717,850) E>R
• General Fund $1,787,999 R>E

• Includes step increases for FOP Officers &
Sergeants per contract

• Provides 4.5% of existing actual
compensation for non-FOP merit increase
pool



Proposed 2024
Parks Sales Tax Fund

• Funded by ½ cent sales tax.  No sharing with other jurisdictions
• Debt Service

• Normal Debt Schedule - $3,446,128
• Adjusted Debt Service - $1,321,301
• Pre-paid Debt reserve will be used for the last two years of Scheduled Debt

Service (2028 – 2029)
• Sales Tax revenues are budgeted at $7,850,000 in 2024 vs.

$7,135,650 in 2023
• Increased  $714,350

• Proposed 2024 budgeted revenues are $324,675 greater than 2023
adopted budget

• Proposed 2024 budgeted expenditures are $481,584 greater than
2023 adopted budget

• Fund Balance is expected to increase $397,435











2024 Parks Sales Tax Fund
Projected Fund Activity

12/31/2023 UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE (EST.) $2,675,147
2024 NET ACTIVITY (UNRESTRICTED) $   397,435

PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED 12/31/2024
PARKS FUND – FUND RESERVES $3,072,582

RESTRICTED as of 12/31/2024
For Synthetic Field Replacement $   900,000
For CVAC Improvements $   290,475

Total RESTRICTED balance 12/31/2024 $1,190,475

Note:  40% reserve policy does not apply to this fund



Proposed 2024
Capital
Improvement
Sales Tax Fund

• Funded by ½ cent sales tax – 15% is shared
with the County Pool.

• Parallel Parks revenues, but 15% less
• Sales Tax and grant revenues are budgeted

at $6,715,000 in 2024 vs $ 6,115,000 in
2023.

• Increased $600,000
• Proposed 2024 budgeted expenditures are

$8,432,850
• Fund Balance is expected to decrease by

$1,717,850 in 2024
• City does not generally intend to carry a

fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund











Approximately 25% of the fleet



Proposed 2024
General Fund Budget

• Sales Tax revenues are budgeted at $8,740,000 in 2024
vs. $7,600,250 in 2023

• Increased $1,139,750

• Normal Debt Schedule (Land Acquisition)- $1,003,025
• Adjusted Debt Service - $350,411

• Uniform Debt Service through 2027
• Pre-paid Debt reserve will be used for the last two years of

Scheduled Debt Service (2028 – 2029)
• 2024 Expenditures are $21,983,218 an increase of

$1,357,044 above 2023 budgeted expenditures.







Fund Reserves Estimate
(AS PROPOSED)



 1 

 
 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 __________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                   

 

 PUBLIC HEARING 

 WILDHORSE VILLAGE SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT  

  

DECEMBER 4, 2023 
________________________________________________________________________                                                                                                                          

 

Mayor Nation called the Public Hearing to order at 7:00 p.m.  Councilmembers 

Monachella, McGuinness, Wahl, Mastorakos, Hurt, Moore, Hansen and Budoor were in 

attendance, along with approximately 15 visitors/members of the Press. 

 

Mayor Nation recognized Director of Planning Justin Wyse who gave a brief presentation 

introducing details of the Wildhorse Village Special Business District draft budget for 

2024 (attached).  The Wildhorse Village Special Business District Advisory Board 

unanimously recommends approval of the proposed budget. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no public discussion or comment, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 

7:03 p.m. 

 

 

 

        

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  _________________ 



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Mike Geisel, City Administrator 

 
From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 
 

Date:  December 4th, 2023 
 
RE:  Wildhorse Village Special Business District – 2024 Budget 

 
Summary 

Following approval of the Wildhorse Village Special Business District, the Advisory 
Board met to discuss a budget for 2024. City Staff has been coordinating with County 
personnel to ensure smooth collections for 2024 to allow for the City to take over 

maintenance of defined areas starting January 1, 2025.  
 

The Wildhorse Village Special Business District Advisory Board met on November 22, 
2023. At that time, Resolution 23-02 was unanimously approved by the Board to 
recommend that the City Council approve the 2024 budget for the Wildhorse Village 

Special Business District. The budget proposed that revenue will begin being collected 
in anticipation of expenses beginning in 2025.. 
 

 
Attachments: 
 WHV Special Business District Advisory Board Resolution 23-02 



 

 

Resolution #______ 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE WILDHORSE 
VILLAGE SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

ON DECEMBER 31, 2024. 
 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2023 the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, 

Missouri (the “Council”) adopted Ordinance No. 3235 (the “Ordinance”), which 
Ordinance established the Wildhorse Village Special Business District (the 
“District”) as a special business district, all in accordance with the Special 

Business Districts Act, Sections 71.790 to 71.808 of the Revised Statutes of 
Missouri, as amended (the “SBD Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, as set forth in the Ordinance, pursuant to Section 71.800.5 of 

the SBD Act, the Council ordered an election on the approval of a tax on owners 

of real property in the District in a sum not to exceed $0.85 per $100 assessed 
valuation on real property, tracts, lots, or parcels of real property in the District 

for the purpose of providing revenue to the District (the “Proposition”); and 
 
WHEREAS, an election on the Proposition was held on August 29, 2023, 

and the certified election results showing that the Proposition passed were 
provided to the Wildhorse Village Special Business District Advisory Board (the 
“Board”) on or about August 30, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Ordinance, the Board shall, within thirty days 

of notice that the Proposition passed at an election held in accordance with the 
SBD Act, fix a time and place for its annual meeting and adopt and then file with 
the Council a proposed annual budget for the District, which proposed annual 

budget shall set forth the projected revenues and expenditures for the ensuing 
year; provided, however, that such proposed annual budget for the District is 
only a recommendation to the Council, and is not the final budget of the District 

unless approved by the Council; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board approved Resolution 23-02 proposing an annual 
budget for 2024 for the District for filing with the Council.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WILDHORSE VILLAGE 
SPECIAL BUSINESS DISTRICT ADVISORY BOARD, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. Approval of Proposed Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 

2023.  The proposed annual budget of the District for the fiscal year ending 

December 31, 2024 as set forth on Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference (the “Budget”), is hereby approved and adopted by the City 
Council.   

 

492



 

- 2 - 

 

 
Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2023. 

 
 

 
             
 

   
________________________________             ________________________________                
Presiding Officer     Mayor  

 
 

 
________________________________     
City Clerk 



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

FY 2024 Budget 

 

Wildhorse Village Special Business District 

FY 2024 Budget 

 

Proposed Revenues:   $125,000 

 

Proposed Expenses   $0 

 

  

 









 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

DECEMBER 4, 2023 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:10 p.m. – [There were technical difficulties with 

streaming]. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the November 20, 2023 City Council meeting were submitted for 

approval. Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, 



 2 

to approve the November 20, 2023 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that Candidate Filing opens Tuesday, December 5, at 8 a.m. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that City Hall will be closed at noon on Friday, December 22, 

in observance of Christmas Eve. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that City Hall will be closed on Monday, December 25, in 

observance of Christmas Day. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that Candidate Filing closes Tuesday, December 26, at 5 p.m. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that City Hall will be closed on Monday, January 1, in 

observance of New Year’s Day. 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Tuesday, 

January 2, at 7 p.m. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Mr. Tim Lowe, 2127 Innerbelt Business Drive, stated that he was available to answer any 

questions pertaining to Bill No. 3482 (Chesterfield Village Mall, 700 Chesterfield Center, 

16185 W. Chesterfield Parkway, 16189 W. Chesterfield Parkway). 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

There were no appointments on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning & Public Works Committee 

 

Bill No. 3475 Pertains to the acceptance of Burkhardt Place as a public street in 

the City of Chesterfield  (Second Reading)  Planning and Public 

Works Committee recommends approval 
 

Bill No. 3476 Pertains to the acceptance of Grand Reserve Drive and Grand 

Reserve Court in Grand Reserve as public streets in the City of 

Chesterfield  (Second Reading)  Planning & Public Works 

Committee recommends approval 
 



 3 

Bill No. 3479 Pertains to the acceptance of Harvester Drive, Pine Summit Drive, 

Deer Antler Court, Fienup Farms Boulevard, and portions of 

Fienup Lake Drive and Patchwork Fields in Fienup Farms as public 

streets in the City of Chesterfield  (Second Reading)  Planning & 

Public Works Committee recommends approval 
 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Chairperson of the Planning & Public Works 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, for the second reading 

of Bill Nos. 3475, 3476 and 3479.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 

result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill Nos. 3475, 3476 and 3479 were read for 

the second time. 

 

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3475 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Mastorakos, Budoor, Wahl, Monachella, Hurt, McGuinness, 

Hansen and Moore.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3475 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3267. 

 

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3476 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Hansen, Hurt, Moore, Wahl, McGuinness, Budoor, 

Monachella and Mastorakos.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 

3476 approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3268. 
 

A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3479 with the 

following results:  Ayes – Moore, Hansen, Hurt, McGuinness, Mastorakos, Budoor, Wahl 

and Monachella.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3479 

approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3269. 
 

Bill No. 3477 Amends Title III, Schedule VII Parking Restrictions of the 

Chesterfield City Code of ordinances by adding provisions thereto 

to restrict parking on Wings Corporate Drive, Buzz Westfall Drive, 

and Paul Haglin Drive  (Second Reading)  Planning & Public 

Works Committee recommends approval 
 

Bill No. 3478 Amends Title III, Schedule I of the ordinances of the City of 

Chesterfield by adding provisions thereto to include additional 

electric traffic control signals  (Second Reading)  Planning & 

Public Works Committee recommends approval 
 

Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to 

postpone the second reading of Bill Nos. 3477 and 3478 for consideration, at the 

recommendation of City Attorney Chris Graville.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Hansen announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled 

for Thursday, December 7, at 5:30 p.m. 



 4 

 

Finance & Administration Committee 

 

Councilmember Michael Moore, Chairperson of the Finance & Administration 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to approve a 

proposed resolution adopting the 2024 budget for the City of Chesterfield.  A roll call 

vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Mastorakos, Hurt, Wahl, Hansen, 

Monachella, Moore, Budoor and McGuinness.  Nays – None.  Mayor Nation declared the 

motion passed, and the successful resolution became Chesterfield Resolution No. 491. 

 

Councilmember Moore announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled 

for Tuesday, December 19, at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Mary Monachella, Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts 

Committee, indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this 

meeting. 

 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Bill No. 3480 Amends article XI offenses concerning drugs with respect to the 

legalization of adult use marijuana  (Second Reading)  Public 

Health and Safety Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, for the second reading 

of Bill No. 3480.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the 

motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3480 was read for the second time.  A roll call vote 

was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3480 with the following results:  Ayes 

– Moore, Monachella, Mastorakos, Budoor, McGuinness, Hurt, Wahl and Hansen.  Nays 

– None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3480 approved, passed it and it 

became ORDINANCE NO. 3270. 

 

Bill No. 3481 Amends sections 210.900 and 220.150 of the City municipal code 

related to firearms regulations  (Second Reading)  Public Health 

and Safety Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Wahl made a motion, seconded by Councilmember McGuinness, to 

schedule a Public Health & Safety meeting of the Council of the Whole for further 

consideration of Bill No. 3481. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to amend the 

original motion by postponing the second reading of Bill No. 3481 until after the Public 



 5 

Health & Safety meeting of the Council of the Whole.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion to amend was declared passed.  A voice vote 

was taken on the motion as amended, with a unanimous affirmative result, and the 

motion, as amended, was declared passed. 

 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract 

for Schoettler Road Sidewalk Project . Based upon review of information provided by 

Director of Public Works/City Engineer Jim Eckrich, Mr. Geisel joined with him in 

recommending authorization for the City Administrator to execute an agreement with 

Horner and Shifrin for professional services related to the Schoettler Road Sidewalk 

Grant Project, in an amount not to exceed $260,000.  Councilmember Moore made a 

motion, seconded by Councilmember Mastorakos, to approve this recommendation.  A 

roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Hurt, Mastorakos, Moore, 

Monachella, McGuinness, Wahl, Hansen and Budoor.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor 

Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that The Factory, located at 17105 N. Outer 40 Road, has requested a 

new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be 

consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  Mr. Geisel reported that, per City policy, this 

application has been reviewed and is now recommended for approval by both the Police 

Department and Planning & Development Services.  Councilmember Hansen made a 

motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve issuance of a new liquor license 

to The Factory.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the 

motion was declared passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that Narwhal’s Crafted of Chesterfield LLC, located at 17081 North 

Outer 40 Road #206, has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of 

intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  Mr. 

Geisel reported that, per City policy, this application has been reviewed and is now 

recommended for approval by both the Police Department and Planning & Development 

Services.  Councilmember Hansen made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, 

to approve issuance of a new liquor license to Narwhal’s Crafted of Chesterfield LLC.  A 

voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared 

passed. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Bill No. 3482 Provides for the approval of a Boundary Adjustment Plat for 

consolidation of four parcels totaling 25.883 acres into three (3) 

parcels zoned PC&R Planned Commercial and Residential District 

(18S130157, 18S410163 and 18S410239)  (First and Second 

Reading) 



 6 

 

Councilmember Monachella made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, for 

the first and second readings of Bill No. 3482.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3482 was read for the 

first and second time.  A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 

3482 with the following results:  Ayes – Wahl, Moore, Hansen, Hurt, McGuinness, 

Monachella, Mastorakos and Budoor.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared 

Bill No. 3482 approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 3271. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to 

approve a proposed resolution adopting the 2024 budget for the Wildhorse Village 

Special Business District.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

McGuinness, Hansen, Monachella, Budoor, Wahl, Mastorakos and Moore.  Nays – Hurt.  

Mayor Nation declared the motion passed and the successful resolution became 

Chesterfield Resolution No. 492. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:37 

p.m. 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 



PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Dan Hurt 

 

 
Waterfront at Wildhorse Village ASDSP – An Amended Site Development Section 
Plan for the addition of on-street parking for an 11.55-acre tract of land zoned “PC 

& R” Planned Commercial & Residential located south of Wild Horse Creek Road, 
west of Chesterfield Pkwy East, and north of Burkhardt Place. (Voice Vote) 

Planning & Public Works Committee recommends approval. 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee is scheduled for 
Thursday, January 4th, 2024, at 5:30pm. 
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 
of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 
Tuesday’s meeting.   



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Mike Geisel, City Administrator  
 
FROM: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 
 James Eckrich, Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary  

 Thursday, December 7, 2023 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Thursday, December 7, 2023 in Conference Room 101.  
 
In attendance were:  Chair Merrell Hansen (Ward IV); Councilmember Mary Monachella (Ward 
I), Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos (Ward II), and Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III), 
 
Also in attendance were:  Justin Wyse, Director of Planning; Petree Powell, Assistant City 
Planner; Alyssa Ahner, Planner; Shilpi Bharti, Planner; Theresa Barnicle, Recording Secretary; 
George Stock, Engineer for Applicant and Kate Stock-Gitto, Engineer for Applicant. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 
    

A. Approval of the November 9, 2023 Committee Meeting Summary 
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of  
November 9, 2023.   The motion was seconded by Councilmember_Monachella and passed by 
a voice vote of 4-0.   
 
 
II. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 
III. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. POWER OF REVIEW: Waterfront at Wildhorse Village ASDSP:  An Amended 
Site Development Section Plan for the addition of on-street parking for an          
11.55-acre tract of land zoned “PC & R” Planned Commercial & Residential located 
south of Wild Horse Creek Road, west of Chesterfield Pkwy East, and north of 
Burkhardt Place. (Ward 4) 
 

STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Alyssa Ahner, Planner explained that the request is for the addition of three (3) on-street 
parking spaces in a single-family residential neighborhood. She stated that it will not take away 
from the street width. Staff has reviewed the proposal and has no further comments.  
Mr. Wyse explained that the developer, McKelvey Homes, wants to add parking for homes that 
don’t have on-street parking in front of them.  
This project qualifies for administrative approval; however, the site-specific zoning ordinance 
indicates that it is subject to automatic Power of Review. 

 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
December 7, 2023 

2 

 
Councilmember Mastorakos made a motion to forward POWER OF REVIEW: Waterfront at 
Wildhorse Village ASDSP to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
[Please see the attached report prepared by Justin Wyse, Director of Planning, for 
additional information on Waterfront at Wildhorse Village.] 

 

B. P.Z. 13-2023 17551, 17555 & 17599 Chesterfield Airport Rd. (Baldridge-
Ryken, LLC): A request for an ordinance amendment to create a new “PC” 
Planned Commercial District for three parcels zoned “PC” Planned Commercial 
and “NU” Non-Urban and totaling 2.9 acres located on the north side of 
Chesterfield Airport Road, east of Long Road (17U140252, 17U140263, and 
17U140203). (Ward 4) 
 
 

STAFF PRESENTATION 
Ms. Shilpi Bharti, Planner explained that a request for an ordinance amendment to modify the 
permitted use, building setbacks, and parking setbacks in the current “NU” Non-Urban and “PC” 
Planned Commercial District to a new “PC” District located north of Chesterfield Airport Road.  
 
A Public Hearing was held on September 27, 2023 for this petition, there were two issues raised, 
the buffering space and number of drive-throughs. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
On November 13, 2023 Planning Commission voted to approve this petition with an amendment 
to revise the Attachment A to include a language that the buffer between potential area 1 and 
potential area 2 shall comply with the Preliminary Development Plan. The amended motion 
passed by a vote of 8-0. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 
Councilmember Monachella expressed concern that the submitted plan would be too busy for an 
already busy corner. She was also concerned that the plan had a lack of a turn lane/throughfare 
so that drivers heading east could exit the lot more easily. 
 
Councilmember Hurt was also concerned about the lack of a cross-access. He cited the current 
configuration at Enterprise Rent-A-Car was successful and questioned if that plan could be 
replicated here. He noted that it was doubtful that Arnage would ever go through the current Ford 
dealership. He would like the option to close the Chesterfield Airport Road access point to the 
site, if Arnage could be extended to the subject site.  He raised the question if this issue could be 
held until the next meeting so that the language could be amended to include limits on the size of 
building, and no outdoor storage. 
 
Councilmember Mastorakos worried about the intensity of use and packing so much in to this site, 
and that it is too aggressive for the size of the lot. She is worried that this would cause traffic to 
overflow onto Chesterfield Airport Rd. She recommends to stay with only one drive-thru allowed 
on the current plan. 
 
Chair Hansen raised concern that having an auto repair facility on that corner would cause storage 
of vehicles, therefore defying the architectural standards because of its high-profile location at 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
December 7, 2023 

3 

Long Road and I-64.  She had a problem with the use, and prefers one drive-thru only. She was 
also concerned that if approved, the businesses occupying the space could change in future 
years. 
 
George Stock, engineer for the applicant, spoke to the board and explained that his client is just 
speculating at this juncture because the dispensary and car wash which was planned for the site 
moved to the TSG site east of the subject property because re-zoning was not required. He 
explained that the auto repair would be a quick lube type of business that would not require the 
storage of vehicles. He also explained that whatever drive-through business that would be on the 
lot would have to submit a traffic study to demonstrate flow of traffic so it could be ensured that 
overflow would not happen. With abundant stacking on the site, he does not think there will be a 
situation where traffic would overflow onto Chesterfield Airport Road. The situation with Chick-Fil-
A is an anomaly.  Mr. Stock was comfortable with adding a limitation of vehicle storage on the site 
to prevent it from being a traditional auto repair business versus a drive through oil and lube 
business. He explained that he would have to talk to his client about reducing the number of 
businesses and drive-thrus, however. 
 
After some discussion, the Committee reached the consensus to hold on a vote at this time.   
 
This topic will be placed on the next Planning & Public Works Committee agenda. 
 

C. St. Louis County Boundary Commission-Map Plan Submission:   A Resolution 
to submit a Map Plan to the St. Louis County Boundary Commission to preserve 
the City’s right to annex Clarkson Valley. 

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Petree Powell, Assistant City Planner explained that the boundary commission has a 5-year map 
cycle that begins on Jan 1, 2023.  In order to preserve the City’s ability to annex Clarkson Valley, 
a Map Plan must be filed with the St. Louis County Boundary Commission. This was last done in 
2018. If this is not done in this new cycle, the City would have to wait until 2030 to take any action 
concerning Clarkson Valley.  
 

DISCUSSION 
 

Committee members discussed the likelihood of annexation of Clarkson Valley and the reasons 
it would benefit the City of Chesterfield and Clarkson Valley.  The important point today is that 
we file the Map Plan to preserve the City’s right to annex in this cycle.  
 
Councilmember Hansen made a motion to forward St. Louis County Boundary Commission-
Map Plan Submission to City Council with a recommendation to approve.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Monachella and passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 
 
[Please see the attached report prepared by Justin Wyse, Director of Planning, for 
additional information on St. Louis County Boundary Commission-Map Plan Submission.] 
 

 
IV. OTHER 
 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 



Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
December 7, 2023 

4 

The meeting adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: January 2nd, 2024

RE: Waterfront at Wildhorse Village ASDSP: An Amended Site Development
Section Plan for the addition of on-street parking for an 11.55-acre tract
of land zoned “PC & R” Planned Commercial & Residential located south
of Wild Horse Creek Road, west of Chesterfield Pkwy East, and north of
Burkhardt Place.

Summary
Stock & Associates, on behalf of McKelvey Homes LLC, has submitted an Amended
Site Development Section Plan for the addition of three (3) on-street parking spaces in
a single-family residential neighborhood. Staff has reviewed the proposal and has no
further comments.

This project qualifies for administrative approval; however, the site-specific zoning
ordinance indicates that it is subject to automatic Power of Review. The project was
reviewed by Planning & Public Works Committee on December 7th, 2023 and a motion
to recommend approval passed by a vote of 4-0.

Figure 1: Subject site aerial with proposed on-street parking location



+546

+543.30 00

1
00

2
00

A

A

B

B

LOT 20
5,700 S.F.
TF=530.28
BF=522.28

LOT 21
6,319 S.F.
TF=532.03
BF=524.03

LOT 22
6,814 S.F.
TF=533.94
BF=525.94 LOT 23

6,199 S.F.
TF=534.92
BF=526.92

LOT 24
6,202 S.F.
TF=536.18
BF=528.18 LOT 25

6,175 S.F.
TF=537.57
BF=529.57

LOT 26
6,198 S.F.
TF=538.54
BF=530.54

LOT 27
6,201 S.F.
TF=539.80
BF=531.80

LOT 28
6,199 S.F.
TF=541.19
BF=533.19

LOT 29
6,505 S.F.
TF=542.16
BF=534.16

LOT 30
6,498 S.F.
TF=543.42
BF=535.42

LOT 31
5,700 S.F.
TF=544.60
BF=536.60

LOT 32
6,054 S.F.
TF=545.48
BF=537.48

LOT 33
6,024 S.F.
TF=546.69
BF=538.69

LOT 34
5,700 S.F.
TF=548.27
BF=540.27

LOT 35
6,315 S.F.
TF=549.27
BF=541.27

LOT 1
6,870 S.F.
TF=549.30
BF=541.30

LOT 2
6,353 S.F.
TF=548.61
BF=540.61

LOT 3
6,549 S.F.
TF=546.89
BF=538.89

LOT 4
5,775 S.F.
TF=545.90
BF=537.90

LOT 5
5,475 S.F.
TF=545.10
BF=537.10

LOT 6
5,475 S.F.
TF=543.85
BF=535.85

LOT 7
5,559 S.F.
TF=542.90
BF=534.90

LOT 8
5,911 S.F.
TF=542.11
BF=534.11

LOT 9
6,101 S.F.
TF=540.96
BF=532.96

LOT 10
6,123 S.F.
TF=539.96
BF=531.96

LOT 11
6,523 S.F.
TF=539.18
BF=531.18

LOT 12
6,268 S.F.
TF=538.02
BF=530.02

LOT 13
6,251 S.F.
TF=537.03
BF=529.03

LOT 14
6,240 S.F.
TF=536.25
BF=528.25

LOT 15
6,232 S.F.
TF=535.09
BF=527.09

LOT 16
7,068 S.F.
TF=534.09
BF=526.09

LOT 17
7,347 S.F.
TF=532.82
BF=524.82

LOT 18
9,064 S.F.
TF=530.79
BF=522.79

LOT 19
7,477 S.F.
TF=529.01
BF=521.01

AMENDED SITE
DEVELOPMENT
SECTION PLAN

ASDSP-1.0

“ ”

“ ”

 

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
C

H
ES

TE
R

FI
EL

D
ST

. L
O

U
IS

 C
O

U
N

TY
,  

M
IS

SO
U

R
I

W
AT

ER
FR

ON
T 

AT
 W

IL
DH

OR
SE

 V
IL

LA
GE

 - 
 L

OT
 6

AM
EN

D
ED

 S
IT

E 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

68
00

\2
02

06
86

4\
68

64
 - 

lo
t 6

 A
SD

SP
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 A

SD
SP

-0
1.

0 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 3
0,

  2
02

3 
- 1

0:
09

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 k

at
e.

gi
tto

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

PH
. (

63
6)

 5
30

-9
10

0
FA

X 
(6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER DECEMBER 2019 ELEV:510±

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F CITY OF CHESTERFIELD DB 23588 PG 3628

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F YMCA DB 8129 PG 295 18T620217 16464 BURKHARDT PL ADJUSTED YMCA PARCEL PB 360 PG 236

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP=524.45 CL STA:7+78.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
492

AutoCAD SHX Text
494

AutoCAD SHX Text
496

AutoCAD SHX Text
+514.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+514.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+514.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+514.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
515

AutoCAD SHX Text
516

AutoCAD SHX Text
515

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
+517.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
x498.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
x494.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
x494.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
x498.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
x493.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
x497.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
x493.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
x492.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
x493.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
x496.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
x494.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
x495.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.P. ELEV. = 509.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
520

AutoCAD SHX Text
518

AutoCAD SHX Text
516

AutoCAD SHX Text
514

AutoCAD SHX Text
512

AutoCAD SHX Text
510

AutoCAD SHX Text
508

AutoCAD SHX Text
506

AutoCAD SHX Text
504

AutoCAD SHX Text
502

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
498

AutoCAD SHX Text
496

AutoCAD SHX Text
492

AutoCAD SHX Text
494

AutoCAD SHX Text
490

AutoCAD SHX Text
488

AutoCAD SHX Text
486

AutoCAD SHX Text
484

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F YMCA DB 8129 PG 295 18T620217 16464 BURKHARDT PL ADJUSTED YMCA PARCEL PB 360 PG 236

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0-15' BUILD TO LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURKHARDT PLACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURKHARDT PLACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(43'w) PUBLIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILDHORSE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP=533.80 CL STA:1+78.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP=527.05 CL STA:5+45.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP=527.73 CL STA:6+09.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE WATER AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE WATER AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE WATER AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERFRONT AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERFRONT AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S01A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGHT DISTANCE EASEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. SEWER ARE PART  OF THE OVERALL WILDHORSE  VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH "BB.1" 20MSD-00474  FL=505.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=533.00  FL=507.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=528.00  FL=511.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH (WATER TIGHT/ LOCKING LID) TOP=527.56  FL=512.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH (WATER TIGHT/ LOCKING LID) TOP=524.46  FL=514.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH (WATER TIGHT/ LOCKING LID) TOP=524.92  FL=515.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=542.69  FL=532.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=546.12  FL=534.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=537.12  FL=527.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=535.23  FL=526.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH (WATER TIGHT/ LOCKING LID) TOP=530.37  FL=517.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=533.42  FL=508.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. MH TOP=533.00  FL=525.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LAKE III NORMAL POOL ELEV. = 509.11 2YR. HW ELEV. = 511.50 100 YR. HW ELEV. = 513.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SEWER ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
544

AutoCAD SHX Text
542

AutoCAD SHX Text
41'W., PRIVATE ROAD, PARKING & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
41'W., PRIVATE ROAD, PARKING & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 6.0' CONC. WALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 6.0' WALK (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 5.0' CONC. WALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. ROLLED CURB (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. ROLLED CURB (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MON. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MON. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
26'W., PRIVATE ROADWAY & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. ROLLED CURB (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
41'W., PRIVATE ROAD, PARKING & UTILITY ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE FRONT  TRAIL (UNDER DIFFERENT RECORD NUMBER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 9.0'x22.0' (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. UNDERDRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. FES FL=521.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA INLET "54.1" (UIP) TOP=516.92 SILL=516.00 FL(6")=512.92 FL=507.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA INLET #54.7 (UIP)20MSD-00335 TOP=523.92 SILL=523.00 FL(6")=518.83 FL=517.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCED STORM MH #54.3(UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=529.32 FL(in)=516.60 FL(out)=507.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH #54.5(UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=532.15 FL=517.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH #54.6(UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=530.50 FL=517.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH #54.4(UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=531.60 FL=516.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH #54.2 (UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=528.82 FL(E)=521.78 FL(N)=507.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH "#54" (UIP) 20MSD-00335 TOP=517.10 FL=506.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=521.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. FES FL=521.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=529.56 FL=524.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=529.56 FL=525.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=532.42 FL=527.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=532.24 FL=527.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=531.92 SILL=531.00 FL=525.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=527.00 FL=522.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI. W. SI TOP=528.25 FL=522.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=530.42 SILL=529.50 FL=523.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=545.71 FL=537.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=544.70 FL=536.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=541.44 FL=534.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. DBL-CI TOP=538.98 SILL=538.06 FL=531.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=540.09 SILL=539.17 FL=532.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=546.67 SILL=545.75 FL=537.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=535.93 FL=529.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. DBL-CI TOP=531.00 SILL=530.08 FL=524.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=527.67 SILL=526.75 FL=520.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=527.05 FL=519.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=524.42 SILL=523.50 FL=517.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=524.21 FL=519.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=525.21 FL=516.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=523.00 FL=510.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=546.25 FL=541.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=546.25 FL=541.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. AREA INLET TOP=545.33 SILL=544.41 FL=539.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=546.83 FL=540.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. CBU

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=526.83 FL=522.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=531.40 FL=527.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=533.07 FL=528.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. MH TOP=534.28 FL=529.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 2-GI W. SI TOP=536.67 FL=532.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL 1 STA: 2+30.00 TW=529/BW=528

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL 1 STA: 0+00.00 TW=527/BW=526

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL2 STA: 7+47.64 TW=546/BW=546.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL 2 STA: 0+00.00 TW=528/BW=528

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL 3 STA: 0+00.00 TW=525.5/BW=525.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL 3 STA:2+39.54 TW=530/BW=530

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE FRONT  TRAIL (UNDER DIFFERENT RECORD NUMBER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 6.0' CONC. WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. FES FL=521.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. PAVEMENT UNDERDRAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONNECT TO 12" WATER MAIN WITH 12" MJ VALVE PER MAWC REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. LIGHT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. LIGHT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 8" DI WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. 8" DI WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x 8" PATENT TAP W/ 8" MJ VALVE PER MAWC REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP=549.15 CL STA:18+29.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. TSCL FOR OFFSITE GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18 TF=530.79 BF=522.79 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURKHARDT PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST  

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17 TF=532.82 BF=524.82 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16 TF=534.09 BF=526.09 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24 TF=536.18 BF=528.18 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25 TF=537.57 BF=529.57 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26 TF=538.54 BF=530.54 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27 TF=539.80 BF=531.80 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28 TF=541.19 BF=533.19 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29 TF=542.16 BF=534.16 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30 TF=543.42 BF=535.42 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31 TF=544.60 BF=536.60 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32 TF=545.48 BF=537.48 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33 TF=546.69 BF=538.69 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34 TF=548.27 BF=540.27 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35 TF=549.27 BF=541.27 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29 TF=542.16 BF=534.16 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7 TF=542.90 BF=534.90 MAX HEIGHT=28.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH  

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR. WALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NOT TO SCALE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURKHARDT PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W CESTERFIELD PKWY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD AIRPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHESTERFIELD MALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY. 40/64

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOT 6 OF WILDHORSE VILLAGE AS RECORDED IN P.B. 369 PGS. 579-585 OF THE  ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 415 AND 2031  IN TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH RANGE 4 EAST, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  TO BE REMOVED AND REPLACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  TYPICALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.O.N.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  HIGH WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  LOW FLOW BLOCKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LFB

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  PROPOSED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  FACE OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.I.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  USE IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.B.R.&R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATG

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  ADJUST TO GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
V.C.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(86'W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.V.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  PAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  DEED BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  NOW OR FORMERLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  POLYVINYL CHLORIDE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  TELEPHONE CABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  PLAT BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  ELECTRIC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
-  CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DENOTES RECORD INFORMATION       (   )

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
650.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
650

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2" IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
G   W   T   E

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES PARKING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SANITARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SPOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
442

AutoCAD SHX Text
442.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
+

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UABBREVIATIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CITY OF CHESTERFIELD UDC SEC.405.04.040(D)(11) RESIDENTIAL USES - DWELLING, SINGLE FAMILY ATTACHED & DETACHED  MINIMUM REQUIRED: 2 SPACES FOR EVERY DWELLING - (35 DWELLINGS)x(2 SPACES/DWELLINGS) = 70  70 SPACES MAXIMUM REQUIRED: NONE PROVIDED: THE HOMES HAVE THE OPTION BETWEEN A 2 & 3 CAR GARAGE 2-CAR OPTION PROVIDED:(35 DWELLINGS)x(2 SPACES/GARAGE) + 44 OFF-STREET = 114 SPACES 114 SPACES 3-CAR OPTION PROVIDED:(35 DWELLINGS)x(3 SPACES/GARAGE) + 44 OFF-STREET = 149 SPACES 149 SPACES PROVIDED PARKING DIMENSIONS: PARALLEL PARKING 9'x22' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER STREETSCAPE EXHIBIT 1 OF ORD. 3161 NORTH: N/A  EAST:  N/A SOUTH (WILDHORSE PLACE): 10' SIDEWALK & UTILITY ESMT & 0'-15' BUILD TO LINE SOUTH (BURKHARDT PLACE): 15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER & NO BUILD TO LINE FOR RESIDENTIAL WEST (BURKHARDT PLACE): 15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER & NO BUILD TO LINE FOR RESIDENTIAL SPACE BETWEEN BUILDINGS:ATTACHED OR 6'-20' IF DETACHED  * NOTE: STRUCTURES MAY BE CONSTRUCTED UP TO LOT LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBUILDING VOLUME

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER ORD. 3161 MAXIMUM HEIGHT: 3 STORIES PR. 35 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES - MAX HEIGHT 28.0' LOT SIZE: 50'x110'±

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =    ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
This is to certify that Stock and Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc. has prepared this Site Development Section Plan from a field survey and does not represent a property boundary survey. The information shown is a correct representation of all existing and proposed land divisions.                                             STOCK AND ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS INC.                             L.S. No. 222-D                                                               Walter J Pfleger, Missouri L.S. No. 2008000728

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UST. LOUIS COUNTY BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK# 12048

AutoCAD SHX Text
NGVD29 Elev = 557.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Sq" on top of curb at end of rounding along the north

AutoCAD SHX Text
curb line of the easterly extension of Burkhardt Place on

AutoCAD SHX Text
the east side of Chesterfield Village Parkway; 0.2 mile

AutoCAD SHX Text
north of Lydia Hills Drive.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPREPARED FOR:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPERTINENT DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UGENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. 2. NO SLOPES WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 NO SLOPES WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  SLOPES WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 SLOPES WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 SHALL EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 EXCEED 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 3 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  (HORIZONTAL) TO 1 (HORIZONTAL) TO 1  TO 1 TO 1  1 1 (VERTICAL). 3. STORM WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES STORM WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES SHALL BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES BE DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES DISCHARGED AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES AT AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES AN ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES ADEQUATE NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES NATURAL DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES DISCHARGE POINT. SINKHOLES  POINT. SINKHOLES POINT. SINKHOLES  SINKHOLES SINKHOLES ARE NOT ADEQUATE DISCHARGE POINTS. 4. ALL PROPOSED ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY ALL PROPOSED ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  PROPOSED ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY PROPOSED ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY ACCESS TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY ROADS SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY SHALL MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY MEET MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY MINIMUM ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ST. LOUIS COUNTY ST. LOUIS COUNTY  LOUIS COUNTY LOUIS COUNTY  COUNTY COUNTY SIGHT DISTANCE REQUIREMENTS. 5. ALL GRADING AND DRAINAGE SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. ALL GRADING AND DRAINAGE SHALL BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. 6. ALL HYDRANTS, POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS ALL HYDRANTS, POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  HYDRANTS, POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS HYDRANTS, POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS POWER POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS POLES OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS OR OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS OTHER POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS POTENTIAL OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS OBSTRUCTIONS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS  THE ST. LOUIS THE ST. LOUIS  ST. LOUIS ST. LOUIS  LOUIS LOUIS COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF HAVE A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF A MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF MINIMUM TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF TWO (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF (2) FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF FOOT SETBACK FROM FACE OF  SETBACK FROM FACE OF SETBACK FROM FACE OF  FROM FACE OF FROM FACE OF  FACE OF FACE OF  OF OF CURB OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF OR EDGE OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  EDGE OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDGE OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PAVEMENT, AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF AS DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTED BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF  DEPARTMENT OF DEPARTMENT OF  OF OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC. 7. UTILITY WORK WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE UTILITY WORK WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  WORK WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE WORK WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE WITHIN COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE OR EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE EASEMENT REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE REQUIRES A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE A SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  SEPARATE SPECIAL USE SEPARATE SPECIAL USE  SPECIAL USE SPECIAL USE  USE USE PERMIT. 8. ANY ENTITY THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE ANY ENTITY THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  ENTITY THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE ENTITY THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE THAT PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE PERFORMS WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE WORK ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE ON ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE LOUIS COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE COUNTY MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE MAINTAINED PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE PROPERTY SHALL PROVIDE  SHALL PROVIDE SHALL PROVIDE  PROVIDE PROVIDE THE COUNTY WITH A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  COUNTY WITH A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE COUNTY WITH A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  WITH A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE WITH A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE A CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE INSURANCE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE EVIDENCING GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE  LIABILITY COVERAGE LIABILITY COVERAGE  COVERAGE COVERAGE (BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  AND PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY PROPERTY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY DAMAGE) IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY IN THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY THE AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY AMOUNTS SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY SPECIFIED AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY AS THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY THE LIMITS OF LIABILITY  LIMITS OF LIABILITY LIMITS OF LIABILITY  OF LIABILITY OF LIABILITY  LIABILITY LIABILITY SET BY THE STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  BY THE STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” BY THE STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  THE STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” THE STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” STATE FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” FOR PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” PUBLIC ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” ENTITIES.  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” SUCH CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” CERTIFICATE SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” SHALL INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” INCLUDE “ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  “ST. LOUIS COUNTY” ST. LOUIS COUNTY”  LOUIS COUNTY” LOUIS COUNTY”  COUNTY” COUNTY” AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  AN ADDITIONAL INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. AN ADDITIONAL INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  ADDITIONAL INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. ADDITIONAL INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. INSURED AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. AND SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. SHALL BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. TO THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. THE ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT. ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMIT.  OF ANY PERMIT. OF ANY PERMIT.  ANY PERMIT. ANY PERMIT.  PERMIT. PERMIT. CERTIFICATE SHALL PROVIDE FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   SHALL PROVIDE FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  SHALL PROVIDE FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   PROVIDE FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  PROVIDE FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  FOR A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  A 30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  30 DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  DAY POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  POLICY CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  CANCELLATION NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  NOTICE TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   ST. LOUIS COUNTY.  ST. LOUIS COUNTY.   LOUIS COUNTY.  LOUIS COUNTY.   COUNTY.  COUNTY.  UPON REQUEST, THE COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  REQUEST, THE COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND REQUEST, THE COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  THE COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND THE COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND COUNTY WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND WILL PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND PROVIDE THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND THE SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND SPECIFIC AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND AMOUNTS FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND FOR BOTH PER PERSON AND  BOTH PER PERSON AND BOTH PER PERSON AND  PER PERSON AND PER PERSON AND  PERSON AND PERSON AND  AND AND PER OCCURRENCE LIMITS. 9. PRIOR TO “SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS PRIOR TO “SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  TO “SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS TO “SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  “SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS SPECIAL USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS USE PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS PERMIT” ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS ISSUANCE BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS BY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS  OF HIGHWAYS OF HIGHWAYS  HIGHWAYS HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC, A SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  TRAFFIC, A SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE TRAFFIC, A SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  A SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE A SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE SPECIAL CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE CASH ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE ESCROW OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE OR A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE A SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE SPECIAL ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE ESCROW SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE SUPPORTED BY AN IRREVOCABLE  BY AN IRREVOCABLE BY AN IRREVOCABLE  AN IRREVOCABLE AN IRREVOCABLE  IRREVOCABLE IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT, MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  OF CREDIT, MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY OF CREDIT, MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  CREDIT, MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY CREDIT, MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY MAY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY BE REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY REQUIRED TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY TO BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY BE ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY ESTABLISHED WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY  ST. LOUIS COUNTY ST. LOUIS COUNTY  LOUIS COUNTY LOUIS COUNTY  COUNTY COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY AND TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY TRAFFIC TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY TO GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY GUARANTEE COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY COMPLETION OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY OF THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  THE REQUIRED ROADWAY THE REQUIRED ROADWAY  REQUIRED ROADWAY REQUIRED ROADWAY  ROADWAY ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS. 10. COORDINATE WITH COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK COORDINATE WITH COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  WITH COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK WITH COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK COUNTY AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK AR-1817 PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK TO THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK THE START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK START OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK OF ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK ANY WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK WORK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  ON WILD HORSE CREEK ON WILD HORSE CREEK  WILD HORSE CREEK WILD HORSE CREEK  HORSE CREEK HORSE CREEK  CREEK CREEK ROAD. 11. THIS PROJECT DOES NOT INCLUDE WORK WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT THIS PROJECT DOES NOT INCLUDE WORK WITHIN ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY OR EASEMENT 12. THE PROJECT'S REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS THE PROJECT'S REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  PROJECT'S REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS PROJECT'S REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS REQUIRED TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS GENERATION ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS ASSESSMENT SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS SHALL BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS BE DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS DEPOSITED WITH ST. LOUIS  WITH ST. LOUIS WITH ST. LOUIS  ST. LOUIS ST. LOUIS  LOUIS LOUIS COUNTY PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY BUILDING PERMITS FOR THIS PROJECT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARD NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKelvey Homes, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
by:__________________________________

AutoCAD SHX Text
of the City of Chesterfield 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(present zoning)

AutoCAD SHX Text
"PC&R"

AutoCAD SHX Text
- Planned Commercial & Residence 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ordinance No. 3161, do hereby agree and declare that said property from 

AutoCAD SHX Text
the date of recording this plan shall be developed only as shown 

AutoCAD SHX Text
thereon, unless said plan is amended by the Planning Commision, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
or voided or vacated by order of ordinance of the City of Chesterfield Council.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(applicable subsection)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF MISSOURI   )

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUNTY OF ST. LOUIS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
My commission expires:

AutoCAD SHX Text
      On  this %%U     %%U day of  %%U                 %%U , 2023, before  me

AutoCAD SHX Text
personally  appeared                        , who being  by  me  duly

AutoCAD SHX Text
sworn,  did say he is the         of                          ,

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                    and  that  said

AutoCAD SHX Text
instrument  was  signed  on  behalf  of  said  limited  liability

AutoCAD SHX Text
company,  and  that said                     acknowledged  said

AutoCAD SHX Text
instrument to be the free act and deed of said limited  liability

AutoCAD SHX Text
      IN  WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed and sealed the foregoing

AutoCAD SHX Text
the day and year first above written.

AutoCAD SHX Text
company.

AutoCAD SHX Text
                    ) SS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                        Notary Public

AutoCAD SHX Text
                                        Print Name

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKelvey Homes. LLC, the owner of the property shown on this plan for and in consideration of being granted a permit to develop property under the provisions of Chapter.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES HAVE BEEN PLOTTED FROM AVAILABLE SURVEYS, RECORDS AND INFORMATION, AND, THEREFORE DO NOT NECESSARILY REFLECT THE ACTUAL EXISTENCE, NONEXISTENCE, SIZE, TYPE, NUMBER, OR LOCATION OF THESE FACILITIES, STRUCTURES AND UTILITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, STRUCTURES, AND UTILITIES, EITHER SHOWN OR NOT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THE UNDERGROUND FACILITIES, STRUCTURES, AND UTILITIES SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO ANY GRADING, EXCAVATION OR CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS. THESE PROVISIONS SHALL IN NO WAY ABSOLVE ANY PARTY FROM COMPLYING WITH THE UNDERGROUND FACILITY SAFETY AND DAMAGE PREVENTION ACT, CHAPTER 319 RSMo.   STOCK AND ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. AND THE UNDERSIGNED ENGINEER HAVE NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY OTHERS TO IMPLEMENT THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN AND ALL OTHER DRAWINGS WHERE THE UNDERSIGNED ENGINEER'S SEAL APPEARS.  THE CONSTRUCTION MEANS AND METHODS ARE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE OWNER AND CONTRACTOR. STOCK AND ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY FINAL IMPROVEMENTS AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN UNLESS SPECIFICALLY ENGAGED AND AUTHORIZED TO DO SO BY THE OWNER OR CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UUTILITY NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIOR TO OBTAINING A CONSTRUCTION PERMIT FROM THE METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE THE DISTRICT WITH A COPY OF AN EXECUTED CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE INDICATING THAT THE PERMITTEE HAS OBTAINED AND WILL CONTINUE TO CARRY COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY AND COMPREHENSIVE AUTO LIABILITY INSURANCE. THE REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITS SHALL BE AS STATED IN THE "RULES AND REGULATIONS AND ENGINEERING DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR SANITARY AND STORMWATER DRAINAGE FACILITY", SECTION 10.090 (ADDENDUM).

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY BY STOCK AND ASSOCIATES CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, INC. BOUNDARY AND TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY BY STOCK AND ASSOCIATES CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, INC. 2. ALL GRADING AND DRAINAGE TO BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MSD AND CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS.  ALL GRADING AND DRAINAGE TO BE IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MSD AND CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS.  3. ALL UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY THE ENGINEER FROM AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEIR LOCATION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE.  THE CONTRACTOR ALL UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED BY THE ENGINEER FROM AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEIR LOCATION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE.  THE CONTRACTOR HAS THE RESPONSIBILITY TO NOTIFY ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, TO HAVE EXISTING UTILITIES FIELD LOCATED. SHOULD ANY CONFLICTS BE EVIDENT, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE OFFICE OF THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY. 4. ON-SITE STORM WATER DRAINAGE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SECTION 31-04-12, STORMWATER STANDARDS, IN THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ON-SITE STORM WATER DRAINAGE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SECTION 31-04-12, STORMWATER STANDARDS, IN THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE. 5. OFF-SITE GRADING EASEMENTS, IF REQUIRED, SHALL BE EXECUTED AND RECORDED PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY OFF-SITE GRADING. OFF-SITE GRADING EASEMENTS, IF REQUIRED, SHALL BE EXECUTED AND RECORDED PRIOR TO THE COMMENCEMENT OF ANY OFF-SITE GRADING. 6. CROSS-ACCESS EASEMENTS WHERE REQUIRED, SHALL BE EXECUTED AND RECORDED AS INDIVIDUAL LOTS ARE DEVELOPED. CROSS-ACCESS EASEMENTS WHERE REQUIRED, SHALL BE EXECUTED AND RECORDED AS INDIVIDUAL LOTS ARE DEVELOPED. 7. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY STANDARDS. 8. TREE PRESERVATION AND LANDSCAPING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 31-04-02, TREE PRESERVATION AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS, IN THE UNIFIED TREE PRESERVATION AND LANDSCAPING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 31-04-02, TREE PRESERVATION AND LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS, IN THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE. 9. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS. ALL PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO ST. LOUIS COUNTY AND THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD STANDARDS. 10. SIGN APPROVAL IS A SEPARATE PROCESS. SIGN APPROVAL IS A SEPARATE PROCESS. 11. NO GRADE  SHALL EXCEED 3 TO 1. NO GRADE  SHALL EXCEED 3 TO 1. 12. STORM WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AS DIRECTED BY THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD. SINKHOLES ARE NOT ADEQUATE DISCHARGE POINTS. STORM WATER SHALL BE DISCHARGED AS DIRECTED BY THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD. SINKHOLES ARE NOT ADEQUATE DISCHARGE POINTS. 13. INSTALLATION OF LANDSCAPING AND ORNAMENTAL ENTRANCE MONUMENT OR IDENTIFICATION SIGNAGE CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REVIEWED BY THE CITY OF INSTALLATION OF LANDSCAPING AND ORNAMENTAL ENTRANCE MONUMENT OR IDENTIFICATION SIGNAGE CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REVIEWED BY THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AND ST. LOUIS COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC FOR SIGHT DISTANCE CONSIDERATION AND APPROVED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OR CONSTRUCTION. 14. THE DEVELOPER IS ADVISED THAT UTILITY COMPANIES WILL REQUIRE COMPENSATION FOR RELOCATION OF THEIR FACILITIES WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY. UTILITY THE DEVELOPER IS ADVISED THAT UTILITY COMPANIES WILL REQUIRE COMPENSATION FOR RELOCATION OF THEIR FACILITIES WITHIN PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY. UTILITY RELOCATION COST SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED AS AN ALLOWABLE CREDIT AGAINST THE PETITIONER'S TRAFFIC GENERATION ASSESSMENT CONTRIBUTIONS. THE DEVELOPER SHOULD ALSO BE AWARE OF EXTENSIVE DELAYS IN UTILITY COMPANY RELOCATION AND ADJUSTMENTS. SUCH DELAYS WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A CAUSE TO ALLOW OCCUPANCY PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF ROAD IMPROVEMENTS. 15. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED UNDERGROUND.   ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED UNDERGROUND.   16. SITE DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RECOMMENDATIONS AS OUTLINED IN THE "REVISED PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATION" PREPARED BY SITE DEVELOPMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RECOMMENDATIONS AS OUTLINED IN THE "REVISED PRELIMINARY GEOTECHNICAL EXPLORATION" PREPARED BY MIDWEST TESTING (MT JOB NO. 14938), DATED APRIL 7, 2020. 17. ALL ABOVE GROUND UTILITY FACILITIES TALLER THAN TWO (2) FEET IN HEIGHT OR COVERING IN EXCESS OF FOUR (4) SQUARE FEET IN SIZE SHALL BE SCREENED ALL ABOVE GROUND UTILITY FACILITIES TALLER THAN TWO (2) FEET IN HEIGHT OR COVERING IN EXCESS OF FOUR (4) SQUARE FEET IN SIZE SHALL BE SCREENED FROM PUBLIC VIEW. IF SCREENING IS COMPLETED BY LANDSCAPE MATERIAL, A LANDSCAPE PLAN IDENTIFYING THE SIZE, LOCATION AND SPECIES SHALL BE SUBMITTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF ANY FACILITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A TRACT OF LAND BEING LOT 6 OF WILDHORSE VILLAGE AS RECORDED IN P.B. 369 PGS. 579-585 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 415 AND 2031  IN TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH RANGE 4 EAST, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS  AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHERN MOST CORNER OF BURKHARDT PLACE AS DEDICATED BY PLAT BOOK 283 PAGE 37 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, BEING ON THE NORTHEAST RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF BURKHARDT PLACE AS DEDICATED BY  DEED BOOK 23588 PAGE 3666 OF SAID RECORDS, THENCE THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES ALONG SAID NORTHEAST RIGHT OF LINE: NORTH 03 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 20 SECONDS EAST, 8.50 FEET, TO A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 826.50 FEET; ALONG SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 244.42 FEET, AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 84 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 57 SECONDS WEST, 243.53 FEET; SOUTH 76 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 53 SECONDS WEST, 99.72 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 345.00 FEET; ALONG SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 697.81 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 45 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, 584.80 FEET TO A REVERSE CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 985.00 FEET; AND ALONG SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 218.62 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 05 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 03 SECONDS EAST, 218.17 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCE: NORTH 90 DEGREES 00 MINUTES  00 SECONDS EAST, 193.02 FEET; SOUTH 58 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 435.45 FEET; SOUTH 79 DEGREES 15 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST, 111.90 FEET; NORTH 77 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 197.35 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A RADIUS OF 575.00 FEET; WITH SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 259.17 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 89 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, 256.98 FEET; SOUTH 10 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST, 262.29 FEET TO A  CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 128.00 FEET; ALONG SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 37.76 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 24 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59 SECONDS EAST, 37.63 FEET; AND SOUTH 32 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST, 46.68 FEET TO A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 168.50 FEET; ALONG SAID CURVE  AN ARC DISTANCE OF 111.25 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS SOUTH 45 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 109.24 FEET; AND  SOUTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST, 48.06 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ABOVE SAID BURKHARDT PLACE, BEING ON A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 568.00 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 10.64 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 66 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST, 10.64 FEET TO A COMPOUND CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 818.00 FEET; AND WITH SAID CURVE AN ARC DISTANCE OF 281.27 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS NORTH 76 DEGREES 46 MINUTES 37 SECONDS WEST, 279.89 FEET, ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 503,496 SQUARE FEET OR 11.559 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPROPERTY DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USHEET INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASDSP-1.0 AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN L1.100  PLANTING PLAN PLANTING PLAN L2.100  PLANTING SCHEDULE AND DETAILSPLANTING SCHEDULE AND DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OWNER:    MCKELVEY HOMES, LLC  MCKELVEY HOMES, LLC  OVERALL AREA:  11.559 Acres    11.559 Acres ±EXISTING ZONING:  PC & R PER ORDINANCE #3161 PC & R PER ORDINANCE #3161 LOCATOR NO:   18T630195 18T630195 WUNNERNBERG'S:  PG. 21, GRID 18FF & 19EE  PG. 21, GRID 18FF & 19EE  FIRE DISTRICT:   MONARCH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  MONARCH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  SCHOOL DISTRICT:  PARKWAY  PARKWAY  SEWER DISTRICT:  METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DIST.   METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DIST.   WATER SHED:   MISSOURI RIVER  MISSOURI RIVER  FEMA MAP:   29189C0165K, FEB 4, 2015  29189C0165K, FEB 4, 2015  ELECTRIC COMPANY:  AMEREN UE - RIC BEHNEN & LES NOLAN AMEREN UE - RIC BEHNEN & LES NOLAN (314) 713-4904 / RBEHNEN@AMEREN.COM                                           (314) 992-8903 / LNOLAN@AMEREN.COM GAS COMPANY:  SPIRE INC -  RAMONA STEVENS & BRIAN LANGENBACHER SPIRE INC -  RAMONA STEVENS & BRIAN LANGENBACHER RAMONA STEVENS & BRIAN LANGENBACHER (314) 575-4843 / RAMONA.STEVENS@SPIREENERGY.COM        (314) 713-6572 / BRIAN.LANGENBACHER@SPIREENERGY.COM      (314) 713-6572 / BRIAN.LANGENBACHER@SPIREENERGY.COM (314) 713-6572 / BRIAN.LANGENBACHER@SPIREENERGY.COM PHONE COMPANY:  AT&T - KATHY SMITH AT&T - KATHY SMITH (636) 949-1312 / KS9340@ATT.COM WATER COMPANY:  MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY - MATT JASPERING  MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY - MATT JASPERING  (314) 606-2615 / MATT.JASPERING@AMWATER.COM  USACE PERMIT:   MVS-2020-554 MVS-2020-554 SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN RECORDED ON 10/16/2020, P.B. 368 PGS. 450-462. AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN RECORDED ON 3/1/2021, P.B. 369 PGS. 61-73 2ND AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN RECORDED ON 9/17/2021, P.B. 369 PGS 394-398 3RD AMENDED SITE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN RECORDED ON 6/15/2022, P.B. 370 PGS. 238-240 SITE DEVELOPMENT SECTION PLAN RECORDED ON 6/2/2021 P.B. 369, PGS. 207-212

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT:1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: HORZ:1"=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERFRONT AT WILDHORSE VILLAGE - LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NUMBER: 000996

AutoCAD SHX Text
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE M. STOCK   E-25116

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE MAP #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.S.D. P #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.L.C. H&T #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
H&T S.U.P. #

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.D.N.R. #:

AutoCAD SHX Text
K.S.G.

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.M.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/20/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
220-6864

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
18T

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/2023

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	2023-11-30 CITY2023-11-30 CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
McKELVEY HOMES 218 CHESTERFIELD TOWNE CENTRE CHESTERFIELD, MO 63005

AutoCAD SHX Text
This Amended Site Development Section Plan was administratively approved and duly verified on the _____ day of ___________ 2024, authorizing the recording of this Amended Site Development Section Plan pursuant to Chesterfield Ordinance No, 200, as attested to by the Director of Planning and Development Services and the City Clerk. By: ____________________ Justin Wyse, AICP Director of Planning City of Chesterfield, Missouri By: ____________________ Vickie McGownd, City Clerk City of Chesterfield, Missouri  







FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 
Vice-Chair:  Barbara McGuinness 

 
 
Repeal Planning Policy No. 1 dated 06/19/2017 – Chesterfield Historic and 

Landmark Preservation Committee – On December 19. 2023 the Finance and 
Administration Committee met and voted 4-0 to recommend to City Council that the 
Chesterfield Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee (“CHLPC”) be disbanded 

and its regulatory duties be transferred to other City Committees and Commissions. 
(Voice Vote) Finance and Administration Committee recommends approval. 

 
 
Authorize a 2024 Budget Amendment in the amount of $5,000 to update the 

City’s Website Logo – On December 19, 2023 the Finance and Administration 
Committee met and voted 4-0 to recommend that City Council authorize a 2024 

Budget Amendment in the amount of $5,000 to update the City’s Website Logo. (Roll 
Call Vote) Finance and Administration Committee recommends approval. 
 

 
 
NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the F&A Committee has not yet been scheduled.  

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 
Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   

 
 

 



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

Finance and Administration Committee 
Record of Proceeding 

December 19, 2023 

 

 

The Finance and Administration Committee met on Tuesday, December 19, 2023.  Those in 

attendance included:  Chairperson Michael Moore, Ward III; Council Committee Member 

Barbara McGuinness, Ward I; Council Committee Member Aaron Wahl, Ward II; Council 

Committee Member Gary Budoor, Ward IV; City Administrator Mike Geisel; and Finance 

Director Jeannette Kelly.  Those also in attendance included:  Mayor Bob Nation; 

Councilmember Mary Monachella, Ward I; Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos, Ward II; 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen, Ward IV; Director of Planning Justin Wyse; Assistant City 

Planner Petree Powell; Assistant City Administrator Elliot Brown; Director of IT Matt Haug; 

City Clerk Vickie McGownd; and approximately six other attendees. 

 

Chairperson Michael Moore called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

 

Chesterfield Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee (CHLPC) 

 

Chairperson Michael Moore introduced a proposal to transfer the responsibilities from 

Chesterfield Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee (CHLPC) to the Heritage 

Foundation [a 501(c)(3) organization].  The CHLPC has become more of a regulatory group 

since its creation, and has not been doing the regulatory things associated with the policy 

created for the CHLPC.  Mr. Moore suggested, for the purpose of discussion, a solution could 

be to transfer membership from CHLPC to the Heritage Foundation. 

 

City Administrator Geisel explained that under the current structure, the CHLPC (as well as all 

other citizen advisory committees) should only be working on things specifically assigned by a 

Committee of Council.  He continued by stating that the CHLPC has done great work for the 

City of Chesterfield, but they have not followed the City’s policy of working under the 

direction of a Committee of Council. 

 

Members in attendance representing the CHLPC and Heritage Foundation asked questions and 

shared concerns of the proposed change.  Discussion ensued pertaining to responsibilities of 

each group. 

 

Mr. Geisel described a potential scenario for working with the CHLPC as an independent 

group.  This could be accomplished by transferring the regulatory functions internally to the 

Architectural Review Board (ARB) and entering into a service agreement including designated 

functions.  A value would be negotiated for those functions and included in the annual budget.  



 

 2 

This would eliminate the constraints of City policy and allow the group to function 

independently. 

 

Councilmember McGuinness made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to endorse 

staff’s recommendation to disband the CHLPC, transfer the regulatory function to ARB and 

enter into a service agreement with a group to perform historic public services.  A voice vote 

was taken with a unanimous affirmative result (4-0) and the motion was declared passed. 

 

City Logo 

 

Assistant City Administrator Elliot Brown stated that staff is requesting a recommendation 

from this Committee to update the City’s digital logo.  As the City migrates to a new website, 

it is necessary to create an updated digital version of the logo to be ADA compliant 

(Americans with Disabilities Act) and compatible with current technology.  The updated logo 

would be used on all digital assets – social media, digital copy of the Citizen newsletter, email 

signature lines, etc.   

 

Councilmember Wahl made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to recommend 

authorization for a $5,000 budget item to be used toward updating the Chesterfield logo.  A 

voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result (4-0) and the motion was declared 

passed. 

 

Adjournment 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Jeannette Kelly     Vickie McGownd 

Finance Director     City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED:  _______________ 



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 
Department of Planning 
 
 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator  

FROM: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning 

DATE: January 2, 2023 

RE:  Repeal Planning Policy No. 1 dated 06/19/2017 
  Chesterfield Historic and Landmark Preservation Committee  
 

 
 

On December 19. 2023 the Finance and Administration Committee met and voted 4-0 

to recommend to City Council that the Chesterfield Historic and Landmark 
Preservation Committee (“CHLPC”) be disbanded and its regulatory duties be 

transferred to other City Committees and Commissions. Further, the Finance and 
Administration Committee voted to enter into a service contract with an independent 
historical society, such as the Heritage Foundation of Chesterfield, to conduct inform, 

educate and celebrate citizens, businesses and visitors about the rich history and 
heritage of Chesterfield.  To begin the process prompted by the two items above, PDS 

Policy No. 1 dated 06/17/2023 which establishes the CHLPC and contains its Mission, 
Procedural Provisions (Membership, Eligibility, Terms, Officers, Meetings) and its 
Powers and Duties is recommended by the F&A Committee to be repealed.  Formal 

revisions to the Unified Development Code will follow in the coming months and work 
will begin on discussions regarding a service contract. 
 

Attached please find a copy of PDS Policy No. 1 to be repealed. 
 



 

Page 1 of 8 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

POLICY STATEMENT 

 
CHESTERFIELD HISTORIC AND LANDMARK PRESERVATION COMMITTEE  

 
 

Established  

 
The City of Chesterfield hereby establishes the "Chesterfield Historic and 

Landmark Preservation Committee” or “CHLPC”  
 
 

Mission   
  
The purpose of the CHLPC is to promote the educational, cultural, economic, 

and general welfare of the community by:  
  

1. Providing a mechanism to identify and preserve the distinctive historic, 
archaeological and architectural characteristics of Chesterfield which 
represent elements of the city’s cultural, social, economic, political and 

architectural history;  
 

2. Fostering civic pride in the beauty and noble accomplishments of the past 
as represented in Chesterfield’s landmarks and historic designations;  

 

3. Conserving and improving the value of property designated as landmarks 
or within historic designations;  

 

4. Providing for economic benefits to encourage business and residential 
owners to locate and invest in historically significant properties;  

 
5. Protecting and enhancing the attractiveness of the city to home buyers, 

tourists, visitors, and shoppers, and thereby supporting and promoting 

business, commerce and industry;   
 

6. Fostering and encouraging preservation, restoration, and rehabilitation of 
the historic structures, areas and neighborhoods, and thereby preventing 
future urban blight;  

 

PLANNING   NO.              01  
  

SUBJECT  Chesterfield Historic and Landmark 
Preservation Committee  

INDEX        P 

  
DATE   
ISSUED  

  
  
08/16/2013  

 
DATE 
REVISED        

  
 02/02/2016 
 06/19/2017 

















 

 

 

 

TO:  Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
  City Administrator 

Date:   December 13, 2023 

RE:   Website & City Logo Update 

 

In light of recent discussions and feedback regarding a possible update 
to our logo, this memo outlines my recommendation for your 
consideration. 

Background: 

The website redesign team, in collaboration with CivicPlus, has 
emphasized the importance of integrating our branding/logo into the new 
design. Given that our current logo is over 20 years old and presents 
scalability issues in the digital realm, CivicPlus has underscored the 
strategic advantage of addressing this matter before embedding it in the 
website design. I have had the opportunity to assess the current branding 
strategy and visual identity of our city, and I believe that a refreshed logo 
will contribute significantly to our overall image and community 
engagement. 

Website Logo vs. City Logo 

There are two separate projects for your consideration at this time: the 
website logo (digital content) and the City logo (physical content). As we 
initiate our website redesign process, I recommend we address the 
website logo first. A refreshed, eye-catching and expressive logo on our 
new website design will serve two functions: 1.) Free up our design 
options for the full site redesign and 2.) enhance our brand recognition 
across different digital platforms. 

 

Elliot Brown 
Assistant City Administrator  

690 Chesterfield Pkwy W 
Chesterfield MO 63017 

Phone 636-537-4705 
Fax 636-537-4798 

ebrown@chesterfield.mo.us 

____________________________________________________________________________ 



City Logo Update 
12/13/2023 
Page 2 
 
 
 

Our current website logo was created about ten years ago:  

 

This logo incorporates some imagery from our City logo (i.e. trees, rolling 
hills, rising sun) and utilizes an olive/moss green color palette. The City’s 
name is prominently displayed under the imagery and stretched to fit in 
our website’s header area. CivicPlus identified some best practices we are 
not following with our current design: 

 Readable font (size and style) 
 ADA-compliant color values 
 Includes both name and state 
 Optimal quality and scalability 
 An online presence mark that can be used for other social 

media platforms to create consistency and 
recognizability. 

CivicPlus has raised concerns that if we proceed with the website redesign 
without addressing the website logo first, we may face two potential 
issues: 

1. We might be forced to make design decisions that compromise the 
end product, hindering the creation of a modern, premium 
municipal website. 

2. We could find ourselves in a situation where we need to halt the 
process to undertake a rebranding/logo update, causing delays and 
additional costs. 



City Logo Update 
12/13/2023 
Page 3 
 
 
CivicPlus Website Logo Development Package 

CivicPlus currently offers a Logo Development Package for $5,000 that 
includes: 

 3 to 5 initial logo concepts 
 2 rounds of revisions 
 Finalized logo in Full Color (.AI, .PNG, .JPG), Black and White (.PNG, 

.JPG), and Greyscale (.PNG, .JPG) 
 Online Presence Guide with the finalized logo, colors (RGB and 

HEX), logo variations (if applicable), and fonts 
 Social Media Graphics (Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, and YouTube) 

Alternatively, we can request quotes from Captiva Marketing (a graphics 
vendor we’ve worked with in the past) and/or freelance graphic artists for 
potential cost comparisons. 

Here are some examples municipal website logos recently redesigned by 
CivicPlus showing more modern design trends: 

 

 

One benefit of hiring CivicPlus for the website logo design is that staff will 
have a opportunity to work with their creative team before beginning the 



City Logo Update 
12/13/2023 
Page 4 
 
 
larger website redesign project, gaining valuable insight on the company’s 
process. 

City Logo: 

  1988   2001    Today 

  

Our City logo should be equally effective on a business card as it is on a 
billboard or a website. Moreover, design elements such as chunky 
typography, pixel-line background, and a single high-contrast color 
reflect an aesthetic that may have been popular in the past but is now 
considered dated.  

One of the primary concerns highlighted is the limited scalability of our 
current "trees and C's" logo. As our logo is featured across various 
platforms, from digital screens to print materials, it is crucial that it 
maintains clarity and visual appeal in all formats. 

Another downside to the current design is that it becomes pixelated 
quickly when scaled, compromising its professionalism and effectiveness. 
This hurts the City’s brand recognition when paired with the inconsistent 
usage across the various departments. 

    

A logo update would allow us the opportunity to spotlight a unique 
element or historic landmark of our community and present ourselves in 





PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Monachella 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 
There are no Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee agenda action items scheduled 
for Tuesday night’s meeting.  

 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee has not yet been 

scheduled.  
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Director TW Dieckmann or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting. 
 

 



PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Michael Moore 

 
 
There are no Public Health and Safety Committee agenda action items scheduled for 

Tuesday night’s meeting.  
 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee has not yet been 
scheduled. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief Ray 
Johnson or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   

 
 



REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

Proposed Resolution No. 494 – St. Louis Boundary Commission-Map Plan – A 
resolution by the City of Chesterfield authorizing the City Administrator to file with 
the Boundary Commission of St. Louis County a map plan identifying the limits of 

any potential boundary changes that may occur during the upcoming five-year 
planning cycle established by the boundary commission. (Voice Vote) Planning 

Director recommends approval. 
 
Liquor License – GO PLAY LLC (140 Long Road, Suite 108) – has requested a new 

liquor license for retail sale of malt liquor and light wine by the drink, to be 
consumed on premise, and Sunday sales. (Voice Vote) Application has been 
reviewed by the Police Department and the Planning Department.  There are no 

known outstanding municipal violations. 
 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 
 
 

Proposed Bill No. 3483 – 1491, 1503, 1505 Schoettler Road BAP – An ordinance 
providing for the approval of a boundary adjustment plat for the consolidation of 
three parcels located in Schoettler’s Subdivision Parcel “B” totaling 13.87 acres 

zoned “NU” Non-Urban (19R130371, 19R130360, 19R130393. (First and Second 
Reading) Planning Director recommends approval. 

 
Proposed Bill No. 3484 - Vacation of Easement – An ordinance vacating an 
easement on adjusted Lot DD of boundary adjustment plat of adjusted lots A, B, D, 
and E of Wild Horse Heights Subdivision plat book 348, page 415 and a tract of land 

in U.S. surveys 153 and 164, township 45 north, range 3 east, as recorded in plat 
book 352 page 82-83 of St. Louis County, Missouri. (First and Second Reading) 

Planning Director recommends approval. 
 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
There is no unfinished business scheduled for this meeting. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 



 

Memorandum  

 Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  

Date: January 2, 2024 

RE: St. Louis Boundary Commission-Map Plan 

Submittal 

___________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Boundary Commission is responsible for review of all proposals affecting 

boundaries of incorporated and unincorporated areas within St. Louis County.  Most 

boundary changes are required to be approved by the Boundary Commission, as well 

as, be approved by the voters in the impacted areas. 

Sections 72.400-72.423 of the Revised Missouri Statutes dictate the authority and 

activities of the Boundary Commission.  The statute establishes a six-year cycle that 

includes a Map Plan phase and a Proposal phase.  We are currently are entering the 

Map Plan phase which begins January 1, 2024 and lasts until July 1, 2024.  

Submission of a municipality’s Map Plan serves to reserve the right to pursue 

annexation during the Proposal phase.  No jurisdiction can pursue annexation 

proposals unless the proposal is within the map plan boundaries.  The window opens 

every six years and in 2018 the City of Chesterfield filed a map plan for Clarkson Valley 

to reserve its right if the City determined that it would seek annexation.  A new window 

opens again January 1.  Therefore, if the City has interest in contemplating boundary 

changes in the next six (6) years, a submittal must be provided to the Boundary 

Commission prior to July 1, 2024.  Submission of a Map Plan does not obligate a City 

to pursue annexation.  However, lack of a submission does preclude the ability for 

changes until the next Map Plan phase begins, which here is January 1, 2030. 

We are again seeking to submit a Map Plan for the possible future annexation of 

Clarkson Valley. To proceed in this planning cycle, City Council must again adopt a 

resolution and submit the Map Plan to the Boundary Commission. This item was 

brought to the Planning and Public Works Committee on December 7, 2023 for review 

and recommendation to the City Council. The Committee voted 4-0 to recommend 

approval by City Council. Attached to this report, please find a copy of the necessary 

Resolution and the proposed City of Chesterfield Map Plan for Clarkson Valley. 

Attachments: Draft Resolution   
Proposed City of Chesterfield Map Plan for Clarkson Valley. 

 
See Resolution No. 494



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO FILE WITH THE BOUNDARY COMMISSION OF ST. LOUIS 
COUNTY A MAP PLAN IDENTIFYING THE LIMITS OF ANY POTENTIAL BOUNDARY 
CHANGES THAT MAY OCCUR DURING THE UPCOMING FIVE-YEAR PLANNING 

CYCLE ESTABLISHED BY THE BOUNDARY COMMISSION. 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 72.423 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, 

there is established a five (5) year planning cycle for all municipalities to conduct 
annexation activities and stipulates that certain guidelines must be met within this 

five (5) year timeframe;  
 

WHEREAS, in the period between January 1, 2024 to July 1, 2024, 

municipalities may present to the Boundary Commission of St. Louis County Map 
Plans of potential boundary changes for review; and 

 
WHEREAS, the submission of a Map Plan does not obligate such municipality 

to pursue such a boundary change; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield wishes to file a Map Plan submission for 

future potential boundary changes;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. That the City Administrator of the City of Chesterfield is 

authorized to file with the Boundary Commission of St. Louis County the Map Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. Said Map Plan shall be filed on or before July 1, 2024.  
 

 Section 2.  That this Map Plan represents the City of Chesterfield’s official 
Map Plan in conformance with the requirements of Section 72.423 of the Revised 

Statutes of Missouri. 
 
 

Passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri this 
_____day of ______________________, 2024. 

 
 

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER     Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 
 

______________________________
Vickie McGownd, City Clerk

FIRST READING HELD: 

_________________________ 

494





 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE:   December 20, 2023 
 
TO:  Mike Geisel 
  City Administrator 
  
FROM:  Denise Pozniak, Business Assistance Coordinator  
 
SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST – GO PLAY LLC   
   
              
GO PLAY LLC … has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of malt liquor and light wine by the drink, to be 
consumed on premise, and Sunday sales.  
 
Business description: Indoor playground and birthday party center 
 
There are no known outstanding municipal violations at this location: 
140 Long Rd, Suite 108 
 
Jennifer Byrne is the managing officer. 
 
This application was reviewed and approved by both the Police Department and the Department of Planning. 
 
With City Council approval at the Monday January 2, 2024 city council meeting, I will immediately issue this license. 
 

 



BILL NO.  __________    ORDINANCE NO._____________

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR THE CONSOLIDATION OF THREE PARCELS
LOCATED IN SCHOETTLER’S SUBDIVISION PARCEL “B” TOTALING 13.87-
ACRES ZONED “NU” NON-URBAN (19R130371, 19R130360, 19R130393).

WHEREAS, The Sterling Co., on behalf of Meher & Ferheen Mallick, has
submitted for review and approval a Boundary Adjustment Plat for three existing
parcels totaling 13.87-acres zoned “NU” Non-Urban; and,

WHEREAS, the purpose of said Boundary Adjustment Plat is to adjust lot
lines and consolidate three (3) parcels into two (2) parcels to be known as
Adjusted Lot 1 and Adjusted Lot 2 of Schoettler’s Subdivision Parcel B; and,

WHEREAS, the Department of Planning has reviewed the Boundary
Adjustment Plat in accordance with the Unified Development Code of the City of
Chesterfield and has found it to be in compliance with all applicable ordinances
and has forwarded said Boundary Adjustment Plat to the City Council.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Boundary Adjustment Plat for Adjusted Lot 1 and Adjusted
Lot 2 of Schoettler’s Subdivision Parcel “B”, which is attached hereto as “Exhibit
1”, is hereby approved; the owner is directed to record the plat with the St. Louis
County Recorder of Deeds Office.

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to evidence
the approval of the said Boundary Adjustment Plat by affixing their signatures
and the official seal of the City of Chesterfield as required on the said document.

 Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

Passed and approved this ________________ day of ___________________, 2024.

__________________________________ ________________________________
    PRESIDING OFFICER  Bob Nation, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK

FIRST READING HELD: 01/02/2024

3483



Memorandum
Department of Planning
To: Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning

Date: January 2nd, 2024

RE: 1491, 1503, 1505 Schoettler Road BAP: A Boundary Adjustment Plat
for three (3) parcels located south of Sycamore Manor Dr., west of
Schoettler Road, and north of Greenleaf Valley Dr. (19R130371,
19R130360, 19R130393)

Summary
The Sterling Co., on behalf of the property owner, has submitted a boundary
adjustment plat for the consolidation of three (3) existing parcels into two (2) parcels.
The three parcels, all zoned “NU” Non-Urban, total roughly 13.8-acres. This plat would
consolidate the lots into a 6.05-acre parcel and a 7.82-acre parcel. The minimum lot
size for “NU” Non-Urban is 3 acres. Figure 1 below depicts the existing lot
configuration and Figure 2 depicts the proposed lot configuration. Staff has reviewed
the proposal and has no further comments.

Attachment:
1) Boundary Adjustment Plat

Figure 1: Existing lot configuration Figure 2: Proposed lot configuration

See Bill No. 3483



LOCATION  MAP

STATEMENT OF STATE PLANE COORDINATE TIE:
STATE PLANE COORDINATES WERE DETERMINED ON MARCH 8, 2023 USING TRIMBLE REAL-TIME KINEMATIC GPS HARDWARE FROM THE
PROJECT SITE TO A CONTINUOUSLY OPERATING REFERENCE STATION (CORS) WITH AN ID OF MOSI AND A PID OF DL3650 HAVING PUBLISHED
MISSOURI STATE PLANE (EAST ZONE) 2011 COORDINATE VALUES OF NORTH (Y) = 302843.569 METERS AND EAST (X) = 253367.387 METERS. IN
ORDER TO PUT THIS PLAT ON THE MISSOURI STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST ZONE, GRID NORTH, IT WOULD BE NECESSARY TO
ROTATE THE PUBLISHED PLAT BEARINGS CLOCKWISE BY 00°03'58". THE PUBLISHED PLAT BEARING OF NORTH 33°06'25" WEST, WOULD BE
NORTH 33°02'27" WEST IF ROTATED TO GRID NORTH.

COMBINED GRID FACTOR = 0.999913129 (1 METER = 3.28083333 FEET)

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE:
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, OWNERS OF A TRACT OF LAND HEREIN PLATTED AND FURTHER DESCRIBED IN THE FOREGOING SURVEYORS
CERTIFICATION HAVE CAUSED THE SAME TO BE SURVEYED AND ADJUSTED IN LAND AREA IN THE MANNER SHOWN ON THIS BOUNDARY
ADJUSTMENT PLAT, WHICH SUBDIVISION SHALL HEREAFTER BE KNOWN AS "SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT
PLAT 2".

THE PURPOSE OF THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT IS TO ADJUST AND CONSOLIDATE THE BOUNDARY LINES BETWEEN THREE TRACTS OF
LAND INTO TWO TRACTS OF LAND. THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT CREATE ANY NEW LOTS AND DOES NOT REDUCE ANY
PARCEL AREA BELOW THE MINIMUM SIZE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI ZONING ORDINANCE.

THE 40 FOOT WIDE INGRESS AND EGRESS EASEMENT IS HEREBY GRANTED TO CURRENT OWNERS OF ADJUSTED PARCEL 1, THEIR
SUCCESSORS AND/ OR ASSIGNS, GUESTS, AND INVITEES FOR PRIVATE USE AS A ROADWAY FOR THE PURPOSES OF INGRESS AND EGRESS
FOREVER. MAINTENANCE OF THE PRIVATE ROADWAY SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CURRENT OWNERS OF ADJUSTED PARCEL 1,
THEIR SUCCESSORS AND/ OR ASSIGNS.

THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT DOES NOT VACATE ANY EXISTING EASEMENTS.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT ALL EXISTING EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN OR NOTED ON THIS PLAT AS OF THE TIME AND DATE OF RECORDING OF
THIS PLAT.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THERE ARE NO DELINQUENT TAXES OUTSTANDING.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND THIS ____________ DAY OF___________________________, 2023.

BY: 
 MEHER SARWAR MALLICK, OWNER        FERHEEN F. MALLICK, OWNER

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 )SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS ________________ DAY OF ____________________________, 2023, BEFORE ME PERSONALLY APPEARED MEHER SARWAR MALLICK AND
FERHEEN F. MALLICK, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE THE PERSONS DESCRIBED IN AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT
AND ACKNOWLEDGED THEY EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR FREE ACT AND DEED.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY OFFICIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

STERLING

DRAWN

CHECKED

JOB NO.:

DATE:

BY:

BY:

SHEET        OF  

Ph. 314-487-0440 Fax 314-487-8944

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS 

THE

5055 New Baumgartner Road
St. Louis, Missouri 63129

CO.STERLING
www.sterling-eng-sur.com

MSD P# -GFS

JAH

22-04-138

NOV. 15, 2023

31

N/A

COVER SHEET
AND SCRIPT

SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 2
A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF THREE TRACTS OF LAND BEING PART OF ADJUSTED PARCEL "B" OF BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT SURVEY OF PARCEL "B" OF

A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION WHICH LIES TO THE SOUTHWEST OF SCHOETTLER ROAD
IN U.S. SURVEY 412, T.45N.-R.4E. & A TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEY 1978, T.45N.-R.4E. (P.B. 190, PG. 80)

ALL LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 412 & 1978, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI

ZONED "NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT ACCORDING TO CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI

PREPARED FOR:
MEHER SARWAR MALLICK &
FERHEEN F. MALLICK
1505 SCHOETTLER ROAD
CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 63017

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATION
ORDER NUMBER: 22-04-138
THE STERLING COMPANY
5055 NEW BAUMGARTNER ROAD
ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63129
PHONE: (314) 487-0440

THIS IS TO CERTIFY TO MEHER SARWAR MALLICK AND FERHEEN F. MALLICK, DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH, 2022, PERFORMED A BOUNDARY
SURVEY OF "THREE PARTS OF ADJUSTED PARCEL "B" OF BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT SURVEY OF PARCEL "B", OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT
PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION WHICH LIES TO THE SOUTHWEST OF SCHOETTLER ROAD IN U.S. SURVEY 412,
T.45N.-R.4E. & A TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEY 1978, T.45N.-R.4E, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE 80, ALL LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 412 &
1978, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI", AND
BASED UPON SAID SURVEY HAVE CONSOLIDATED SAID TRACT OF LAND IN THE MANNER SHOWN HEREON. THIS PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED MEETS OR EXCEEDS THE "MISSOURI STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY BOUNDARY SURVEYS" AS AN "URBAN" CLASS PROPERTY
IN EFFECT AT THE DATE OF THIS PLAT.

THE STERLING COMPANY
MO. REG. 307-D

JAMEY A. HENSON, P.L.S., VICE PRESIDENT                       DATE
MO. REG. L.S. #2007017963

SURVEYOR'S NOTES
1. THE PROFESSIONAL WHOSE SIGNATURE AND PERSONAL SEAL APPEARS BELOW ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY ONLY FOR WHAT APPEARS ON

THIS PLAT AND DISCLAIMS (PURSUANT TO SECTION 327.41 RSMO) ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, ESTIMATES,
REPORTS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS OR INSTRUMENTS NOT SEALED BY THE UNDERSIGNED RELATING TO OR INTENDED TO BE USED FOR
ANY PART OR PARTS OF THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THIS PLAT APPEARS.

2. THIS PLAT CONTAINS 604,563 SQUARE FEET (13.879 ACRES MORE OR LESS), AND A TOTAL OF 2 LOTS.

3. ALL BEARINGS AND DISTANCES ARE AS SURVEYED (S) UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.  (R) DENOTES RECORD INFORMATION.

4. THE SUBJECT TRACT IS CURRENTLY ZONED "NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT ACCORDING TO INFORMATION MADE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE BY THE
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI, AND IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING RESTRICTIONS:

FRONT SETBACK: 50 FEET
SIDE SETBACK: 20 FEET
REAR SETBACK: 20 FEET
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 3 ACRES
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 300 FEET

5. BASIS OF BEARINGS: THE RECORDED PLAT OF "BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT SURVEY OF PARCEL "B" OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF
LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION WHICH LIES TO THE SOUTHWEST OF SCHOETTLER ROAD IN U.S. SURVEY 412, T.45N.-R.4E. & A
TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEY 1978, T.45N.-R.4E.", RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE 80 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS.

6. SOURCE OF RECORD TITLE: GENERAL WARRANTY DEED TO MEHER SARWAR MALLICK AND FERHEEN F. MALLICK, RECORDED IN DEED
BOOK 18677 PAGE 1618 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS (ORIGINAL PARCELS 1 AND 3), AND COLLECTORS DEED TO MEHER
SARWAR MALLICK, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2023040500152 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS (ORIGINAL PARCEL 2).

7. SUBJECT TRACT IS LOCATED IN FLOOD ZONE "X" (UNSHADED), FLOOD ZONE "X" (SHADED), FLOOD ZONE "AE", AND FLOOD ZONE "AE"
(FLOODWAY), ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR ST. LOUIS COUNTY,
MISSOURI, AND INCORPORATED AREAS ISSUED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, MAP NUMBER 29189C0170K
EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 4, 2015.

FLOOD ZONE "X" (UNSHADED) IS DEFINED AS AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD.

FLOOD ZONE "X" (SHADED) IS DEFINED AS AREAS OF 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD WITH AVERAGE DEPTHS OF LESS THAN 1 FOOT OR WITH
DRAINAGE AREAS LESS THAN 1 SQUARE MILE, AND AREAS PROTECTED BY LEVEES FROM 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD.

FLOOD ZONE "AE" IS DEFINED AS SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS INUNDATED BY 100-YEAR FLOOD; BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS
DETERMINED.

FLOOD ZONE "AE" (FLOODWAY) IS DEFINED AS FLOODWAY AREAS WITHIN ZONE "AE".

8. PERMANENT MONUMENTS WILL BE SET IN ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF RECORDING OR WHEN FINAL GRADING IS COMPLETE.
SEMI-PERMANENT MONUMENTS WILL BE SET IN ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF RECORDING OR WHEN PAVEMENT IS INSTALLED.

9. FOR EASEMENTS, THE STERLING COMPANY HAS USED, EXCLUSIVELY, THREE INFORMATIONAL TITLE REPORTS BY INVESTORS TITLE
COMPANY, FILE NUMBER 748817 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF MARCH 16, 2023 AT 8:00 AM, FILE NUMBER 748815 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE
OF MARCH 15, 2023, AND FILE NUMBER 748812 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF MARCH 2, 2023 AT 8:00 AM. EASEMENTS AFFECTING THE
SUBJECT TRACT LISTED IN THE ABOVE MENTIONED TITLE REPORTS AFFECT THE SUBJECT TRACT AS SHOWN HEREON.

10. ANY CONSTRUCTION ON ADJUSTED LOT 1 OR ADJUSTED LOT 2 WILL REQUIRE PROJECT RECORD PLAN SUBMITTAL TO THE METROPOLITAN
ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT (MSD).

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ORIGINAL PARCELS 1 AND 3):
PARCEL B OF BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION AS PER PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT
BOOK 190 PAGE 80 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART CONVEYED TO FRED AUGUST LANG AND WIFE
BY DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 4051 PAGE 564 AND THE 20 FOOT PRIVATE ROAD AS SHOWN IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE 80; ALSO EXCEPTING THOSE
PARTS CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD IN BOOK 22421 PAGE 684, BOOK 22421 PAGE 691, AND BOOK 23355 PAGE 110.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ORIGINAL PARCEL 2):
PART OF ADJUSTED PARCEL "B" OF THE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLER'S SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION IN ST.
LOUIS COUNTY MISSOURI ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE 80 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS.
LESS AND EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PORTION CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY DEED RECORDED IN BOOK 22273 PAGE 343
OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS.

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF "SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 2"

WAS APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY ORDINANCE NO. __________________ ON THE __________________

DAY OF ______________________, 2023 AND THEREBY AUTHORIZES THE RECORDING OF THIS BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT WITH THE OFFICE

OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDER OF DEEDS.

                                       BOB NATION,  MAYOR

VICKIE McGOWND,  CITY CLERK

LIENHOLDER CERTIFICATE:
WHEREAS, ____________________________________________, BY A DEED OF TRUST DATED _____________________, 20______ AND RECORDED IN

DEED BOOK _________________, PAGE __________________ OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY RECORDS, DOES HEREBY JOIN IN AND APPROVE EVERY

DETAIL THIS PLAT OF "SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 2".

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE UNDERSIGNED HAS EXECUTED THESE PRESENTS THIS _____________ DAY OF _______________________, 2023.

LENDER: 

BY: 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE

STATE OF MISSOURI  )
 ) SS.

COUNTY OF  )

ON THIS _________ DAY OF __________________________, 2023, BEFORE ME APPEARED ______________________________________________, TO

ME PERSONALLY KNOWN, WHO BEING BY ME DULY SWORN, DID SAY HE/SHE IS THE _____________________________________________, AND

THAT SAID INSTRUMENT WAS SIGNED AND SEALED ON BEHALF OF SAID ASSOCIATION AND SAID __________________________________________

ACKNOWLEDGED SAID INSTRUMENT TO BE THE FREE ACT AND DEED OF SAID ASSOCIATION.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I HAVE HEREWITH SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTARIAL SEAL IN THE COUNTY AND STATE AFORESAID, THE DAY
AND YEAR FIRST ABOVE WRITTEN.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

NOTARY PUBLIC

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ADJUSTED PARCEL 1):
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF ADJUSTED PARCEL “B” OF “BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT SURVEY OF PARCEL “B” OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT
PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION WHICH LIES TO THE SOUTHWEST OF SCHOETTLER ROAD IN U.S. SURVEY 412 T.45N.-R.4E.
& A TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEY 1978, T.45N.-R.4E.”, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE
80 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEYS 412 AND 1978, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST OF THE
FIFTH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF U.S. SURVEY 412, SAID CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE COMMON
GROUND OF “THE MANORS AT SCHOETTLER VALLEY”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 356 PAGE 82 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED
RECORDS; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID U.S. SURVEY 412 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND, NORTH 56°15’21” EAST,
393.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
COMMON GROUND AND THE NORTH LINE OF SAID U.S. SURVEY 412, NORTH 56°15’21” EAST, 36.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID
COMMON GROUND; THENCE ALONG THE NORTHEAST LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND NORTH 49°36’33” WEST, 181.93 FEET TO THE
SOUTH-MOST CORNER OF A COMMON GROUND IN “WESTFIELD FARM PLAT 1”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 202 PAGE 30 OF THE
ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS; THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND, NORTH 56°15’21” EAST, 450.45 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SCHOETTLER ROAD, AS WIDENED BY INSTRUMENTS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 22273 PAGE 343, DEED BOOK
22421 PAGE 684, DEED BOOK 22421 PAGE 691, AND DEED BOOK 23355 PAGE 110 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS; THENCE ALONG SAID
WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES: SOUTH 29°12’10” EAST, 48.94 FEET; SOUTH 38°58’01” EAST, 103.56 FEET;
SOUTH 34°03’43” EAST, 128.60 FEET; AND SOUTH 34°33’44” EAST, 273.65 FEET TO A POINT LOCATED ON THE NORTHWEST LINE OF LOT 15 OF THE
“CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 193 PAGE 25 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS; THENCE ALONG
THE NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID “CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2”, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND DISTANCES:  SOUTH 52°02’21” WEST, 163.20
FEET;  SOUTH 34°19’20” WEST, 162.37 FEET; SOUTH 34°52’49” WEST, 104.26 FEET; AND SOUTH 29°20’39” WEST, 40.84 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
LEAVING THE NORTHWEST LINE OF SAID “CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2”, NORTH 33°44’39” WEST, 508.28 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND
CONTAINING 263,673 SQUARE FEET (6.053 ACRES MORE OR LESS), ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF A BOUNDARY SURVEY PERFORMED BY THE
STERLING COMPANY DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH, 2023 UNDER PROJECT NUMBER 22-04-138.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION (ADJUSTED PARCEL 2):
A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF ADJUSTED PARCEL “B” OF “BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT SURVEY OF PARCEL “B” OF A BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT
PLAT OF LOTS 3 AND 4 OF SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION WHICH LIES TO THE SOUTHWEST OF SCHOETTLER ROAD IN U.S. SURVEY 412 T.45N.-R.4E.
& A TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEY 1978, T.45N.-R.4E.”, A SUBDIVISION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 190 PAGE
80 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI RECORDS, LOCATED IN U.S. SURVEY 412, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST OF THE FIFTH
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF U.S. SURVEY 412, SAID CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE COMMON GROUND
OF “THE MANORS AT SCHOETTLER VALLEY”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 356 PAGE 82 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS;
THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID U.S. SURVEY 412 AND THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND, NORTH 56°15’21” EAST, 393.45
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE LEAVING THE NORTH LINE OF SAID U.S. SURVEY 412 AND SOUTH LINE OF SAID COMMON GROUND, SOUTH 33°44’39”
EAST, 508.28 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF “CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 193 PAGE 25 OF
THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID “CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2”, THE FOLLOWING COURSES AND
DISTANCES: SOUTH 29°20’39” WEST, 59.16 FEET; SOUTH 19°10’08” WEST, 185.15 FEET; SOUTH 22°28’29” EAST, 168.36 FEET; SOUTH 28°37’09” EAST,
200.00 FEET, AND SOUTH 32°16’29” EAST, 239.38 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID “CHESTERFIELD TRAILS PLAT 2” SUBDIVISION, SAID
CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE NORTH LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO LOGAN COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTIC INC, BY INSTRUMENT
RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 11319 PAGE 827 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS; THENCE ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOGAN COLLEGE
OF CHIROPRACTIC INC, TRACT, SOUTH 56°07’11” WEST, 150.00 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOGAN COLLEGE OF CHIROPRACTIC
INC. TRACT, SAID CORNER BEING LOCATED ON THE EAST LINE OF “BAXTER LAKES ADDITION NO. 2”, A SUBDIVISION RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK
173 PAGE 56 OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED RECORDS, SAID CORNER ALSO BEING LOCATED ON THE WEST LINE OF THE ABOVEMENTIONED U.S.
SURVEY 412; THENCE ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID U.S. SURVEY 412 AND THE EAST LINE OF SAID “BAXTER LAKES ADDITION NO. 2”
SUBDIVISION, NORTH 33°06’25” WEST, 1,250.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, AND CONTAINING 340,891 SQUARE FEET (7.826 ACRES),
ACCORDING TO THE RESULTS OF A BOUNDARY SURVEYED PERFORMED BY THE STERLING COMPANY DURING THE MONTH OF MARCH, 2023
UNDER PROJECT NUMBER 22-04-138.

 11/28/2023



STERLING

DRAWN

CHECKED

JOB NO.:

DATE:

BY:

BY:

SHEET        OF  

Ph. 314-487-0440 Fax 314-487-8944

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS 

THE

5055 New Baumgartner Road
St. Louis, Missouri 63129

CO.STERLING
www.sterling-eng-sur.com

MSD P# -GFS

JAH

22-04-138

NOV. 15, 2023

32

N/A

PLAT AND
ACCESS EASEMENTS

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

SEE SHEET 1 OF 3 FOR CERTIFICATION.

THE STERLING COMPANY
MO REG. 307-D

JAMEY A. HENSON, P.L.S.  - VICE PRESIDENT                     DATE
MO. REG. L.S. #2007017963

ABBREVIATION LEGEND:    
BK. = BOOK
BLDG. = BUILDING
C.G. = COMMON GROUND
ChB = CHORD BEARING
ChD = CHORD DISTANCE
D.B. = DEED BOOK
P.D.E. = PERMANENT DRAINAGE ESMT.
DRAIN. = DRAINAGE
ESMT. = EASEMENT
FND. = FOUND
N/F = NOW OR FORMERLY
(NR) = NON-RADIAL
P.B. = PLAT BOOK
P.O.B = POINT OF BEGINNING
P.O.C. = POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PVMT. = PAVEMENT
(R) = RECORD
R.O.W. = RIGHT-OF-WAY
(S) = SURVEYED
S.F. = SQUARE FEET
T.C.E. = TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
'W = WIDTH

SYMBOL LEGEND:    

= SET PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS (5/8" I.ROD W/ ALUMINUM CAP).

= SET SEMI- PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS. (1/2" I.ROD W/ PLASTIC CAP OR CUT
CROSS).

= FOUND PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND SEMI-PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND CROSS

= FOUND ANCHOR

= BENCHMARK

R.O.W. DETAIL
SCALE: 1 in = 50 ft

SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 2

STATE PLANE COORDINATES

 11/28/2023



SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE:

SEE SHEET 1 OF 3 FOR CERTIFICATION.

THE STERLING COMPANY
MO REG. 307-D

JAMEY A. HENSON, P.L.S.  - VICE PRESIDENT                     DATE
MO. REG. L.S. #2007017963

SYMBOL LEGEND:    

= SET PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS (5/8" I.ROD W/ ALUMINUM CAP).

= SET SEMI- PERMANENT MONUMENT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MISSOURI STANDARDS. (1/2" I.ROD W/ PLASTIC CAP OR CUT
CROSS).

= FOUND PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND SEMI-PERMANENT MONUMENT

= FOUND CROSS

= FOUND ANCHOR

= BENCHMARK

= ADDRESS

STERLING

DRAWN

CHECKED

JOB NO.:

DATE:

BY:

BY:

SHEET        OF  

Ph. 314-487-0440 Fax 314-487-8944

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS 

THE

5055 New Baumgartner Road
St. Louis, Missouri 63129

CO.STERLING
www.sterling-eng-sur.com

MSD P# -GFS

JAH

22-04-138

NOV. 15, 2023

33

N/A

EXISTING
EASEMENTS

SCHOETTLERS SUBDIVISION PARCEL "B" BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PLAT 2

ABBREVIATION LEGEND:    
BK. = BOOK
BLDG. = BUILDING
C.G. = COMMON GROUND
ChB = CHORD BEARING
ChD = CHORD DISTANCE
D.B. = DEED BOOK
P.D.E. = PERMANENT DRAINAGE ESMT.
DRAIN. = DRAINAGE
ESMT. = EASEMENT
FND. = FOUND
N/F = NOW OR FORMERLY
(NR) = NON-RADIAL
P.B. = PLAT BOOK
P.O.B = POINT OF BEGINNING
P.O.C. = POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
PVMT. = PAVEMENT
(R) = RECORD
R.O.W. = RIGHT-OF-WAY
(S) = SURVEYED
S.F. = SQUARE FEET
T.C.E. = TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
'W = WIDTH

 11/28/2023



BILL NO.____________       ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING AN EASEMENT ON ADJUSTED LOT DD OF BOUNDARY 

ADJUSTMENT PLAT OF ADJUSTED LOTS A, B, D, AND E OF WILD HORSE HEIGHTS 
SUBDIVISION PLAT BOOK 348, PAGE 415 AND A TRACT OF LAND IN U.S. SURVEYS 

153 AND 164, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 3 EAST, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 

352 PAGE 82-83 OF THE ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI. 

 
 WHEREAS, a petition has been filed by the ALTEA Land Surveyors on behalf of SM 

Properties LLC, requesting the City to vacate an easement on said tracts of land; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, SM Properties LLC, owns the properties on which the easement is located 

and has no need for the easement; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the Departments of Planning and Public Works have reviewed the petition 

and have determined that said petition meets all applicable regulations and that the 

vacation will have no adverse effect on the City of Chesterfield. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Chesterfield hereby approves the utility 

easement vacation located on adjusted Lot DD of Boundary Adjustment Plat of adjusted 

lots A, B, D, and E of Wild Horse Heights subdivision plat book 348, page 415 and a tract 
of land in u.s. surveys 153 and 164, township 45 north, range 3 east, as recorded in plat 

book 352 page 82-83 of the St. Louis County, Missouri records, as described in Exhibit 2, 

which is attached hereto and made part of hereof; and 
 

 Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to evidence the 

approval of the vacation of this utility easement by affixing their signatures and the Official 
Seal of the City of Chesterfield to a Certificate of Approval as required on said documents. 

The petitioner is required and directed to record this easement vacation with the Saint 

Louis County Recorder of Deeds Office; and     

 
 Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval. 

 
 Passed and approved this ______________ day of ___________________, 2024. 

 

 
___________________________________  _______________________________ 

PRESIDING OFFICER    Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 
ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

3484



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 
 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  January 2, 2023 
 

RE:  Vacation of Easement: A request to vacate the utility easement situated 

on parcels 227 and 235 Fick Farm Road of Wild Horse Heights 
Subdivision. The site is located in Ward 4. 

 

Summary 
The ALTEA Land Surveyors, on 

behalf of SM Properties LLC, has 

submitted a request to vacate 
the 35’ wide utility easement 

situated on parcels 227 and 235 

Fick Farm Road of Wild Horse 

Height Subdivision. The utility 
easement overlaps the Roadway 

easement. The Applicant is 

requesting to vacate only the 
utility easement; roadway 

easement will remain in place. 

The existing utility easement is 
also dedicated to multiple utility 

companies. The City has 

received easement releases from 
AT&T, Charter Communications 

Entertainment I, LLC, Missouri American 

Water company, Ameren, Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District, and Spire. The survey 

showing the easement to be vacated is attached with this memo. 

As per City of Chesterfield Planning & Public Works Procedure Number PPW-1053, the 

petition was published in the St. Louis Countian Newspaper fifteen (15) days prior to the 

City Council meeting. Staff did not receive any objection or concerns related to the 

petition.  

Attachments: 

• Legislation 

• Public Notice 

• Petition 

Figure 1: Site Aerial 

Subject Site 

See Bill No. 3484



 

 

NOTICE OF VACATION OF EASEMENT 
 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City of Chesterfield has received a petition 
to partially vacate the easement situated in the City of Chesterfield, Missouri. 
Should anyone have an interest in this, please contact Shilpi Bharti, Planner at 
636-537-4743 or email at Sbharti@chesterfield.mo.us.  The legal description of 
the property to be vacated is as follows: 
 
Vacation utility easement located on adjusted lot DD and adjusted lot EE of  
Boundary Adjustment Plat of adjusted lots A, B, D and E of Wild Horse Heights a 
Boundary Adjustment Plat, plat book 348 page 415 and A tract of land in U.S. 
surveys 153 and 164, Township 45 north, range 3 east, as recorded in plat book 
352 page 82 - 83 of the St. Louis County records and further described as 
follows.  
 
Commencing at the northeastern corner of adjusted lot DD of Boundary 
Adjustment Plat of adjusted lots A, B, D and E of Wild Horse Heights a Boundary 
Adjustment Plat, plat book 348 page 415 and a tract of land in U.S. surveys 153 
and 164, township 45 north, range 3 east, as recorded in plat book 352 page 82 - 
83 of the St. Louis County records; thence along the northern line of adjusted lot 
DD, south 89 degrees 55 minutes 33 seconds west, 526.82 feet to the point of 
beginning; thence continuing along the northern line of adjusted lot DD and 
adjusted lot EE of said subdivision, south 89 degrees 55 minutes 33 seconds 
west, 496.87 feet; thence continuing along the lot line of adjusted lot EE, north 11 
degrees 12 minutes 11 seconds west, 46.97 feet; thence departing from said 
line, south 78 degrees 22 minutes 45 seconds west 20.00 feet, thence south 11 
degrees 12 minutes 11 seconds east, 78.56 feet; thence north 89 degrees 55 
minutes 33 seconds east 396.20 feet to a point of tangency; thence along a 
curve to the right, having a radius of 20.00 feet, a chord bearing of south 44 
degrees 35 minutes 01 seconds east, 28.53 feet, and an arc distance of 31.76 
feet to a point of reverse curvature; thence along a curve to the left, having a 
radius of 64.00 feet, a chord bearing of north 59 degrees 29 minutes 00 seconds 
east, a chord distance of 109.23 feet, and an arc distance of 271.26 feet to the 
point of beginning.  
 

mailto:Sbharti@chesterfield.mo.us








EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
An Executive Session (closed meeting) has been scheduled to take place 
immediately following the Agenda Review Meeting, on January 2, 2024, which 

itself is scheduled to begin at 5:45 pm. 
 
The purpose of this meeting is to provide the opportunity for confidential 

communication by/among the City’s elected officials, the City Attorney and 
appropriate City Staff. 

 
The discussion during this Executive Session is scheduled to include the following: 
 

RSMo 610.021 (1) for the purpose of discussing legal actions, causes of action, litigation or 

privileged communications between the City’s representatives and its attorneys. 
 

RSMo 610.021 (9) for the purpose of preparation, including discussions or work product, on 

behalf of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee 

groups. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me prior to 

Tuesday’s meeting. 

 


	2024-01-02 Paragraphs
	2024-01-02 Paragraphs

	2023.11 Excess Checks Report
	2024-01-02 Waterfront at WHV Lot 6 ASDSP CC Packet
	6864 - lot 6 ASDSP-ASDSP-01.0
	Sheets and Views
	ASDSP-01.0


	20231020 - L1.100 LOT 6
	20231020 - L2.100 LOT 6

	2023-12-19 F&A Committee Meeting Minutes
	2024-01-02 Memorandum Repeal of PDS Policy No 1-CHLPC
	Website Logo Budget Amendment
	2023-01-02 Boundary Commission Submission
	GO PLAY LLC
	Bill No. 3483 Schoettler Road BAP
	Bill No. 3484 Vacation of Easement
	2024-01-02 City Council Agenda
	12-07-2023_Planning_and_Public_Works_Minutes - Draft
	2023-12-04 Budget Public Hearing Minutes
	2023-12-04 WHV SBD public hearing minutes
	2023-12-04 City Council Minutes

